£ Gateshead Public Document Pack
Couw

L

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE AGENDA

Tuesday, 31 October 2017 at 11.00 am in the Bridges Room - Civic Centre

From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey

ltem | Business

1 Application for Variation to a Premises Licence (Pages 3 - 98)

Report of the Strategic Director, Communities and Environment

Contact: Sonia Stewart: email: soniastewart@gateshead.gov.uk, Tel: 0191 433 3045,
Date: Monday, 23 October 2017



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 1

&= Ga teshead LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Council 31 October 2017

www. gateshead. gov.uk

TITLE OF REPORT: Application for the variation of a Premises Licence:
Durham Road Service Station, Durham Road, Birtley, DH3
2PF

REPORT OF: Strategic Director, Communities and Environment:
Licensing Officer

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The Sub-Committee is asked to consider the application from Penny Petroleum
North East Limited to vary the premises licence for Durham Road Service Station,
Durham Road, Birtley, DH3 2PF.

2. BACKGROUND
The Application

The application submitted by Penny Petroleum North East Limited (‘Applicant’) to
vary the premises licence for Durham Road Service Station, Durham Road, Birtley,
DH3 2PF is attached at Appendix 1.

The variation application that has been submitted seeks to change the supply of
alcohol hours to 24 hours in line with the opening hours of the premises.

Licence history

Penny Petroleum North East Limited applied for a premises licence for Durham
Road Service Station, Durham Road, Birtley, DH3 2PF on 26 February 2016. The
application was for the supply of alcohol Monday to Sunday 00:00-23:59 hours and
the provision of late night refreshment Monday to Sunday 23:00-05:00 hours.

Representations were received by Northumbria Police, the Licensing Authority and
Public Health. Following a mediation meeting agreement was reached about the
licensable activity hours and conditions and therefore a premises licence was
granted from 19 April 2016.

The times the Premises Licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
are:
For the supply of alcohol:

Monday to Sunday 06:00 — 23:00 hours

For the provision of late night refreshment:

Monday to Sunday 23:00 — 05:00 hours

Page 3



A copy of the Premises Licence is attached at Appendix 1.1
3. REPRESENTATIONS
The following representations were received:

e Public Health (Appendix 2)
e Gateshead Council’s Licensing Authority (Appendix 2.1)

Both Public Health and the Licensing Authority have provided supplementary
information and these are attached as appendix 2.2 and appendix 2.3.

4. PARTIES

The Parties to the hearing will be:

a) Penny Petroleum North East Limited will be represented by Sarah Clover from
Kings Chambers. Also in attendance and possibly speaking will be Richard
Thrower who is an Area Manager for the company and Gill Sherratt, Licensing
Consultant from Licensing Matters.

b) Joy Evans, Public Health

c) John Bradley, Licensing Authority

5. FOR CONSIDERATION

The areas for consideration by the Sub-Committee are:

e The variation application

e The representations; and

e Whether or not the variation application should be granted.
6. THE POLICY & GUIDANCE

When carrying out its functions the Sub-Committee must have regard to:

(a) the Statement of Gateshead Council’s Licensing Policy, and
(b) the Amended Guidance issued by the Secretary of State

Some relevant parts of the Policy and Amended Guidance are reproduced in
Appendices 3 and 4. The parties may refer to any part of the Policy and Guidance
during the hearing.

7. FOR DECISION

The Sub-Committee is asked to consider the variation application, decide whether or

not it should be granted, and if relevant, attach such conditions as it deems
appropriate for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives.

Page 4



Appendix

Appendix

Appendix

Appendix

Appendix

APPENDICES
Application to vary the Premises Licence
Premises Licence
Representation from Public Health
Representation from the Licensing Authority
Supplementary information from Public Health
Supplementary information from Licensing Authority

Relevant Extracts from Gateshead Council’s Licensing Policy

Relevant Extracts from the Guidance issued under Section 182
of the Licensing Act 2003

Area Plan

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



For help contact

Gateshead
fon Gateshead | Application to vary a premises licence lizensing@gateshead.aov.uk
B Council e Licensing Act 2003 Telephone: 0191 433 4741

m
* required information

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

5 f Not C Ivin U This is the unique reference for this
ystem reference ot Currently in Use application generated by the system.

Your reference You can put what you want here to help you
) track applications if you make lots of them. It

fs passed to the authority,

Put "no” if you are applying on your own

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or

& Yes " No work for.
i 1 01 01T T4 - ¢ | e S ——
* First name [PENNY PETROLEUM |
* Family name INORTH EAST LIMITED |
* E-mail gill.sherratt@licensingmatters.net
Main telephone number 01282 500322 Include country code.
Other telephone number

[0 indicate here if the applicant would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Is the applicant:

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure,

" Applying as an individual Applying as an individual means the
applicant is applying so the applicant can be
employed, or for some other personal reason,
such as following a hobby.

(¢ Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader

Applicant Business

Is the appiicant's business (= Yes > No
registered in the UK with
Companies House?

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form.

Registration number 07952926

if the applicant's business is registered, use
Business name PENNY PETROLEUM NORTH EAST LTD its registered name.
VAT number Put "none" if the applicant is not registered

- for VAT.
Legal status Private Limited Company
Page—7

® Queen's Printer and Controlier of HMZ0 2009 - .

- . -



Continued from previous page...

Applicant's position in the
business

Home country

Registered Address

Building number or name

United Kingdom

|GLOBAL HOUSE

The country where the applicant's
headquarters are.

Address registered with Companies House,

|
Street 303 BALLARDS LANE |
District l |
City or town fLONDON |
County or administrative area ] I
Postcode IN12 8NP
Country ]United Kingdom l
Agent Details
* First name leiLL |
* Family name [SHERRATT I

* E-mail
Main telephone number

Other telephone number

gill sherratt@licensingmatters.net

01282 500322

[] indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:

{: Anagent that is a business or arganisation, including a sole trader

€ Aprivate individual acting as an agent

Agent Business

Is your business registered in

the UK with Companies
House?

Registration number

Business name

& Yes > No

05822732

LICENSING MATTERS

VAT number .

Legal status

Private Limited Company

include country code.

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form,

If your business is registered, use its
registered name.

Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

Page 8

© Queen's Printer and Congeoller of HMSO 2009 -

L

“d-




Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business iDIRECTOR

The country where the headquarters of your

Home country [United Kingdom business is located.
Agent Registered Address Address registered with Companies House,
Building number or name ]54 I
Street [FAIRFIELD DRIVE |
District ‘ J
City or town ICLITHEROE ,
J

County or administrative area [

Postcode lBB? 2PE

Country !United Kingdom !

APPLICATION DETAILS

This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period for which the licence has faffec_t orto
vary substantially the premises to which it relates. If you wish to make that type of change to the premises licence,
you should make a new premises licence application under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003,

I/we, as named in section 1, being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the
Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in section 2 below.

* Premises Licence Number 00CHO4458

Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?
(> Address . 0S map reference (" Description

Postal Address Of Premises

Building number or name IDURHAM ROAD SERVICE STATION

Street [DURHAM ROAD
City or town IGATESHEAD

|
|
District [BIRTLEY !
|
|

County or administrative area l

Postcode |DH3 2PF

Countyy [United Kingdom ,

Premises Contact Details

Telephone number

Page 9

® Queen’s Printer and Contraller of HMSO 2009
- -



Continued from previoys page...

Non-domestic rateable

value of premises (f) [ZO'OOO

VARIATION

Do you want the proposed
variation to have effect as & Yes { No
500n as possible?

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the

introduction of the | ight levy?
! ate night levy You do not have to pay a fee if the only

" Yes & No purpose of the variation for which you are
applying is to avoid becoming liable to the

late night levy.

if your proposed variation
would mean that 5,000 or

| attend the premises at any
one time, state the number
expected to attend

Describe Briefly The Nature Of The Proposed Variation

Describe the premises. For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other i“for”'_‘ation which
could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend 'to
provide a place for consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will be and its
proximity to the premises.

TO CHANGE THE ALCOHOL HOURS TO 24 HOURS IN LINE WITH THE OPENING HOURS

PROVISION OF PLAYS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide plays be subject to change if this application to
vary is successful?

" Yes (¢ No

PROVISION OF FILMS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide films be subject to change if this application to
vary is successful?

: Yes @& No

| PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS

© Queen’s Printer and Controlier of HMSO 2009 hes
- ) > -

more peopleareexpectedto. Frm——



Continued from previous page... See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide indoor sporting events be subject to change if
this application to vary is successful?

" Yes # No

PROVISION OF B.OXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS
See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide boxing or wrestling entertainments be subject
to change if this application to vary is successful?

(- Yes & No

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide live music be subject to change if this
application to vary is successful?

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide recorded music be subject to change if this
application to vary is successful?

™ Yes = No

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide performances of dance be subject to change if
this application to vary is successful?

C Yes # No

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide anything similar to live music, recorded music or

performances of dance be subject to change if this application to vary is
successfui?

 Yes {«: No

PROVISION OF LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

@ Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2004 -
..
-



Continued from previous page...

Will the schedule to provide fate night refreshment be subject to change if

this application to vary is successful?

 Yes & No

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will the schedule to supply alcohol be subject to change if this application to

vary is successful?
=" Yes " No
Standard Days And Timings

Start IOO:OOM J
Start :j

MONDAY

TUESDAY

End |23:59

fnd [ ]

Provide timings in 24 hour clock

(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

© Start [00:00

Start !

WEDNESDAY

Start

Start
Start l . ]

Start
Start I:::j

Start IOO:OO -
Start ] ]

Start
Start l ]

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

SUNDAY

End |23:59

End | B ]

& Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2008,
-

Page 12




Continued from previous page..,

Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption?

{™ Both If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on
the premises select on, if the sale of aicohol
is for consumption away from the premises
select off. If the sale of alcohol is for
consumption on the premises and away
from the premises select both.

{": Onthe premises (& Off the premises

State any seasonal variations.

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months,

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed above,
list below.

| Fot example {but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT
Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children.

Provide information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may
give rise to concern in respect of children, regardtess of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for
example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

NONE

HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY S e .
Provide timings in 24 hour clock
Start 100:00 Fnd {e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
Start ] l End !: to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY
Start [00:00 End
Start l - ’ End | ’
Page 13
@ Queen's Printer and Cur‘\_lroller of HMS0 2009 - L

-



Continued from previous page...

WEDNESDAY
sart [ ] end [ |
THURSDAY
start [ ] end [ ]
FRIDAY
SATURDAY
SUNDAY
Start End 359 |
start [ ] end [ ]

State any seasonal variations.

For example {but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from

those listed above, list below.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g, Christmas Eve,

Identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe couid be removed as a consequence of the

proposed variation you are seeking.

I have enclosed the premises licence

© Queen’s Printer andControlier of KMSO 2009
- >

T

|—l

N




Continued from previous page...

[1 I'have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence

Reasons why [ have failed to enclose the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence.

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General - all four licensing objectives {b,c,d,e)
List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

AS EXISTING

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

AS EXISTING

¢) Public safety

AS EXISTING

d) The prevention of public nuisance

AS EXISTING

e} The protection of children from harm

AS EXISTING

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009
- - - .-




Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.
Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and {b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.
Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.
Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports - defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts - are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.
Live music: no licence permission is required for:

a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell

alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500,

a performance of amplified Tive music between UB.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace thatis not ]

licensed to sefi alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of ampilified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises,

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i} a local authority, or (i} a school, or (jii) a hospital, provided that {(a} the audience does not exceed 500,
and {b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (i) the school or {ifi) the health care provider for the hospital.

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
tocal authority, or {ii} a school, or {iii} a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and {b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i} the local authority

concerned, or (i) the school proprietor or (i) the health care provider for the hospital.

Page 16

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HYSO 2004 -

> o *



Continued from previous page...
Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains

licensable.
Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on

audience size for:
any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided

o
by or on behalf of the local authority;

o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;

0 any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or
on behalf of the school proprietor; and

0 any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling

circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and
(b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

-Variation-Fees-are determined-by the-non&nbsp;domesticrateable&nbsp:value-of-the-premises:

To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/
business_rates/index.htm

Band A - No RV to £4300 £100.00

Band B - £4301 to £33000 £190.00

Band C- £33001 to £87000 £315.00

Band D - £87001 to £125000 £450.00*

Band E - £125001 and over £635.00*

*if the premises rateable value is in Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the
premises then your are required to pay a higher fee

Band D - £87001 to £125000 £900.00

Band £ - £125001 and over £1,905.00

If you own a large premise you are subject to additional fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time
Capacity 5000-9999 £1,000.00

Capacity 10000 -14999 £2,000.00

Capacity 15000-19999 £4,000.00

Capacity 20000-29999 £8,000,00

Capacity 30000-39000 £16,000.00

Capacity 40000-49999 £24,000.00

Capacity 50000-59999 £32,000.00

Capacity 60000-69999 £40,000.00

Capacity 70000-79999 £48,000.00

Capacity 80000-85999 £56,000.00

Capacity 90000 and over £64,000.00

* Fee amount (£) 190.00

DECLARATION
1

I/WE UNDERSTAND THAT IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE
* STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION, THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON

SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

Page 17

@ Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 )
. - : - b - . R



Continued from previous page...

| This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes” to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalif of the applicant?”

* Full name |GILL SHERRATT |
* Capacity |AUTHORISED AGENT ]
* Date |11i/[09]/|2017]

mm yyyy

Once you're finished you need to do the following:

1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...

2. Go back to https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/gateshead/change-1 to upload this file and
continue with your application.

Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

IT1S AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN

CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION, THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BELIABLEON SUMMARY |

%NWGHGN?@MWEGHM%MGUN?“"%"” CUTTTTEemm—————

Applicant reference number

fee paid

Payment provider reference

ELMS Payment Reference

Payment authorisation code

Payrment authorisation date

Date and time submitted

l
|
|
f
Payment status |
l
|
|
f

Approval deadline

Error message

Is Digitally signed M

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 Next>

L8]
»
N
o
a |
(o]
il
=

<Previous 1 2

Page 18

b (Yamme Dol -
& Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 -
- . - : -



‘Gateshead R

CounCil e

WWW. g0 teshead. gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Number 00CH 04458

Part 1 - Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey.map reference or description

Durham Road Service Station
Durham Road
Birtley

Post town Chester-le-Street | Postcode DH3 2PF

Telephone number

€ licence is time limited, the dates

Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence
For the sale by retail of alcohol (off the premises)

For the provision of late night refreshment (indoors)

The times the licence authorises the carrying out.of licensable activities .~

For the sale by retail of alcohol (off the premises):

Monday — Sunday: 06:00 — 23:00

For the provision of late night refreshment:

Monday — Sunday: 23:00 — 05:00

Monday — Sunday: 00:00 — 23:59 (24 hours)

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are On and/or Off supplies

Off the premises

Page 19




Part 2

Name (reglstered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence

Penny Petroleum (North East) Limited
Global House

303 Ballards Lane

Loendon

N12 8NP

‘Registered number of holder, for.example company number, charity number (where applicable) -

07952926

‘Name, address and telephone number of Desugnated'--PremlsesiSuperwsor where the premlses ;Z
licence authorises the sale of alcohol: : 3 . . :

Julia Little
5 Ashwood
South Hetton

DHE 2RQ

authonty of persona 'zcen_ce held by De&gnated
the supply of alcohol.”

Personal _ : )
‘Premises & upemsor where the. ‘premises licence authorise

BCC/PER/C/M054  Durham County Council

‘Signature on behalf of the issuing licensing authority-

Date Of Issue : 19 April 2016

Environmental Health, Licensing and Enforcement Manager
Communities and Environment

Page 20




| Annex 1. - Mandatory Conditions

Supply of aicohol
1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence;
a.  Ata time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or
b. Atatime when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.
2, Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a

personal licence,
3. (1) The premises licence holder must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the

premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcchol.
(2) The designated premises supervisor in refation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of
alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.
{3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age
{or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohot,
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either:

(2) A holographic mark, or

(b) An ultraviolet featurs.

Prohibition on sale of alcohol below cost of duty plus VAT

1. Arelevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption off the premises for a
price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 —
a. ‘Duty’ is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979

b. 'Permitted price’ is the price found by applying the formula —

P=D+({DxV)

Where ~

(i) I is the permitted price,

(ii) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the
date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

{iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol.

¢. ‘Relevant person’ means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises
licence —

i. The holder of the premises licence,
ii. The designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
fii. The personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

d. ‘relevant person’ means, in refation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which
enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

e. ‘Value added tax’ means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act
1994,

3. Where the permitted price given by paragraph b of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be a
whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually
given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4,

a. Sub-paragraph b below applies where the permitted price given by paragraph b of paragraph 2 on
a day (‘the first day') would be different from the permitted price on the next day (‘the second day’)
as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

b. The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which
take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

| Annex 2. - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

1. A CCTV system will be in operation at the premises and recorded images shall be retained for a period of
28 days. The data will be made available to the Police and authorised officers of the Council upon
reasonable request, in line with the Data Protgction Ac

age

-



2. Cameras will be located internally and externalty, and the camera capturing the customer at the counter will
be of a quality 50 as o provide facial recognition.

3. The data controller will train key members of staff in the use of the CCTV system.

4. Arefusals and incidents register will be maintained at the premises (bound or electronic). The register will
be made available for inspection by the Police and authorised officers of the Council upon reasonable

request.
5. Alf spirits will be behind the counter.

6. Between the hours of 23:00 and 05:00, the premises will close to the public and all sales will take place via
the serving hatch.

7. Panic butions wili be in use.

8. All staff af the store will be trained in how to manage any persons who may create a public nuisance in the
vicinity of the store. Such people will be asked to leave the area quietly (if it is safe to do so) and an entry
will be made in the incident register.

8. A notice will be on display asking customers to respect the neighbours when leaving the premises.

10. The premises will operate a Challenge 25 policy. Whenever a person looks or appears to be under the age
of 25, they will be challenged for ID to prove that they are 18 years or older.

11. Posters will be on display advising customers of the Challenge 25 policy.

12. The only types of ID that will be accepted as proof of age will be passports, driving licences and PASS
cards.

13. Staff will be trained before making sale of alcohol in their responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003.
This includes the prevention of underage sales, the Challenge 25 policy, proxy sales, acceptable ID and
intoxicated customers. Training will be documented and made available to the Police and authorised
officers of the Council upon reasonable request.

14. Refresher staff training will take place at |east every 6 months.

15. Till prompts will be in use at the premises.

| Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing with the Licensing Authority

Not applicable

[Annex 4 - Copy of pl:

Page 22



SHOPMATE.

Penny Petreluem
Durham Read §/§

‘Hnit-2 Mersey R Ind Pstate

‘Mersay Rd‘Novth

“Falisworth, 'Manchcster M35 OLE

Tal'6261681°976% Fax 0161681 9752 Mok D7OT6 72517

Birtley ;
Chester Le Street
County ac}@a

£
£
&
Z
2
¥

_ Entrance/ Exit _

Ly

Elactric
Mater

1100 @ A4

DRAWN BY:

NP Existing
VH Preposed

DRAWING NO:
502306

DATE:
Q2.02.2016

. Licensed arsa

X - Fire sxtinguisher

REVISION:
Existing and

Ground Floor as Existing NTS

T i




This page is intentionally left blank



&= Gateshead
HH COUEL[____,..—;.«——

Representations on a Current Application for a Grant/Variation/Review of a Premises
Licence or Club Premises Certificate under The Licensing Act 2003

Before completing this form please read the Guidance Notes at the end of the form

I you are completing this form by hand please write fegibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are
inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. You may wish to keep a copy of the

completed form for your records,

IWe (insert name) Alice Wiseman

Wish to make representation about the application for variation/grant for a premises licence/club premises

certificate (delste as applicable)

PART 1~ PREMISES OR CLUB PREMISES DETAILS

Postal Address of Premises or Club Premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or

description..___..

Durham Road Service Station, Durham Road, Birtley

Post Town Post Code
Gateshead PH3 2PF

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Penny Petroleum North East Limited

Number of premises licence or club premise certificate (if known)

PART 2 - DETAILS OF PERSON MAKING REPRESENTATION

Please
Tick v
1} A responsible authority {please compiete (C) below) v
2) A member of the club to which this representation relates (please complete (A) below) 1]
3) Other persons (Please complete (A} or {(B) below) |
Page 25



(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL MAKING REPRESENTATION (fill in as applicable)

Mr D Mrs D Miss D Ms ]:I Other Title {for example, Rev)

Surname Firs{ Names

[ am 18 years old or over Yes |:| (Please Tick)

Current Address

Post Town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number |

E-mail address (optional) 1

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER PARTY MAKING REPRESENTATION (e.g Body or Business)

Name and Address

Telephone Number {(If any)

E-Mail address (optional}

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY MAKING REPRESENTATION

Name and Address
Alice Wiseman

Director of Public Health
Gateshead Council
Regent Street
Gateshead

NES8 1HH

Telephone Number (If any) 0191 433 2777

E-Mail address (optional)

Page 26




This representation relates to the following ficensing objective(s)

Please
Tick v
1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder O
2. Public Safety v
3. The Prevention of Public Nuisance I
4, The Protection of Children From Harm v

Please state the ground(s) for representation (please read guidance note 1)

This representation is made in my capacity as Director of Public Heaith for the Borough of
Gateshead. As a responsible authority, | am concerned that the requested extension to the hours
of alcohol sales are not in accordance with the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Since 2013 Directors of Public Health have been ‘responsible authorities’ under the Licensing Act
2003.The role of the Director of Public Health is to help promote the heaith and wellbeing of the
local populations they serve. The Public Health approach to alcohol is to encourage and promote
responsible drinking and protect young people from related harm. This is an expansive remit that
influences a wide range of circumstances, including local licensing arrangements. Similarly the
licensing regime is concerned with the promotion of the licensing objectives, which collectively

seek to protect the quality of life for those who live, and work in the vicinity of licensed premises,
and those who socialise in licensed premises.

International evidence suggests that making it less easy to buy alcohol, by reducing the number of
outlets selling it in a given area and the days and hours when it can be sold, is an effective way of
reducing alcohol-related harm (NICE, PH24). Control policies in this area (regulating availability)
reflect the theory that if alcohol is less easy to obtain, alcohol consumption and harm will decrease
(Public Health England, 2016).

Rising consumption has been attributed to the increased affordability, availability and promotion of
alcohol, along with a greater social acceptance of regular drinking and a tolerance of drunkenness.
Increased availability of alcohol has come about through the progressive relaxation of the licensing
regime. The contributory role that alcohol plays in a wide range of adverse social consequences is
also increasingly recognised with links to crime, social disorder, fire fatalities, violence, domestic
violence, child neglect and work-related problems. Poorer populations and communities
experience a disproportionately greater level of alcohol-attributable harm (AFS and SHAAP, 2011).

My objection to this variation is supported by the growing knowledge of the role of alcohol in a wide
range of acute and chronic disorders, and a greater understanding of its negative social impacts.
Licensing is and always has been a whole population intervention which should be employed to
protect our population from harm.

Please provide as much information as possible to support the representation
(Please read guidance note 2)
+ Additional evidence to be provided at a later date.

Please
Tick v

Page 27




Have you made any representation relating to these premises before?

Day

Month

Year

If Yes, please state the date of that representation 0 9

2

! §

[1 i?

If you have made representation before relating fo this premises please state what they were and when you

made them.

Representation to restrict the number of licenced hours for the sale of aicohal.

3 How We Collect And tse Information

The information collected, on this form and from supporting evidence, by Gateshead Council will be used to process your application,

The information may be passed to other Enforcement Agencies as permitied by faw.

We may check information provided by you, or information about you provided by a third party, with other information heid by us. We
may.alse getinformation from cerain third paties. or give information.io.them to.check the accuracy of information. to prevent or.detect

crime, or to protect public funds in other ways, as permitted by law. These third parties include Government Depariments and local

authorities.

We will not disclose information about you to anyone outside Gateshead Council nor use information about you for other purposes

unless the law permits us fo.

Gateshead Council is the Data Controfler for the purposes of the Data Protection Act 1988. If you want 1o know more about what
information we have about you, or the way we use your infarmation, you can ask at Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead, NE§ 1HH

Page 28




Part 3 - Signatures (Please read guidance note 3)

Signature of representative or representatives solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (See guidance note
4) If signing on behalf of the representative please staie in what capacity.

Date

CK///C{,{ /(/f’c?(.gf‘??(iﬁ 09/10/2017

Sighature

Capacity | Director of Public Health

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence asscciated with this
representation. (Please read guidance note 5)

Post Town Post Code

Telephone Number (if any)

E-mail Address (optional}

Notes for Guidance

ko

The ground(s) for representation must be based on one or more of the licensing objectives.

2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems, which are included in
the grounds for representation, if applicable.

3. The representation form must be signed.

4. A representative’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they
have actual authority to do so.

5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this representation.

8. For further information about the Licensing Act 2003 please contact: The Licensing Act Section,

Development & Public Protection, Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead Tyne and Wear NE§ 1HH

Tel: 0191 433 3918 or 0191 433 3178

Page 29




t= Gateshead
COLTW

Representations on a Current Application for a Grant/Variation/Review of a
Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate under The Licensing Act 2003

Before completing this form please read the Guidance Notes at the end of the form

if you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In alf cases ensure that your answers are
inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. You may wish to keep a copy of the
compieted form for your records.

WWe (insert name)| The Licensing Authority

Wish to make representation about the application for variation/grant for a premises licence/club premises
certificate (delete as applicable)

PART 1 - PREMISES OR CLUB PREMISES DETAILS

Postal Address of Premises or Club Premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description

Penny Petroleum North East Limited, Durham Road Service Station, Birtley, Gateshead

Post Town: Gateshead Post Code: DH3 2PF

Name of premises licence holder or club hoiding club premises certificate (if known)

Penny Petroleum North East Limited

Number of premises licence or club premise certificate (if known) 00CH04458

PART 2 - DETAILS OF PERSON MAKING REPRESENTATION

Please
Tick v

1) A responsible authority (please complete (C) below) v

2) A member of the club to which this representation relates {please complete (A} below) [

3} Other persons (Please complete (A) or (B) below) D

Page 30



(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL MAKING REPRESENTATION (fill in as applicable)

Mr D Mrs D Miss D Ms D Other Title (for example, Rev) '

Surname First Names

I am 18 years old or over Yes D (Please Tick)

Current Address

Post Town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address (optional)

{B) DETAILS OF OTHER PARTY MAKING REPRESENTATION (e.g Body or Business)

Name and Address

Telephone Number (If any)

E-Mail address (optional)

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY MAKING REPRESENTATION

Page 31



Name and Address
The Licensing Authority
Civic Centre

Regent Street
Gateshead

Telephone Number (If any)

0191 433 4741

E-Mail address {optional)

licensing@gateshead.gov.uk

Page 32




This representation relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please
Tick «
1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder v
2. Public Safety [
3. The Prevention of Public Nuisance Ve
4, The Protection of Children From Harm [

Page 33



Please state the ground(s) for representation (please read guidance note 1)

The application falls within the Birtley Ward of Gateshead. The Licensing Authority has
been working closely with Council's Community Safety Team examining crime and anti-
social behaviour in this particular area.

The premises in question has been licensed until 2300 to sell alcoho! which is in line with
the timings set out in the Licensing Policy. During this period crime in the Birtley ward has
risen, on average crime across Gateshead had risen by 34% in Birtley this figure is 32%
whilst marginally less than average it is nevertheless still significant. Futhermore, the rate
of recorded crime in this ward increased from 62.9 crimes per 1,000 residents between
20/05/2015 and 19/05/2016 to 88.1 crimes per 1,000 residents between 20/05/2016 and
19/05/2017. The rate of recorded crime for Gateshead during these two periods increased
from 65.8 crimes between 20/05/2016 and 19/05/2017 to 88.1 crimes between 20/05/2016

and 19/05/2017.

The peak period for reports of crime is midnight to 0100.

readily available in this locality with crime and disorder already increasing will undermine
the Licensing Objective by failing to prevent crime and disorder. In addition by making
alcohol available during the night disorder in the area which already causes public
nuisance is likely to be exacerbated rather than prevented and as such the objective of the

prevention of public nuisance will be undermined.

Page 34

Taking the above-into-account the Licensing-Authority-considers-that-making-alcohol———— e



Page 35




Please provide as much information as possible to support the representation

(Please read guidance note 2)

The Licensing Authority reserves the right to make additional comments and present further supporting

evidence.

Page 36



Page 37




Please

Tick v
Have you made any representation relating to these premises before? X[
Day Month Year
If Yes, please state the date of that representation 2 2 0 3 2 0 1 6

If you have made representation before relating to this premises please state what they were and when you
made them,

A representation was made on the 17 Grant application in March 2016 by the Licensing Authority

3 How We Collect And Use Information

The information collected, on this form and from supporting evidence, by Gateshead Council will be used to process your application.
The information may be passed to other Enforcement Agencies as permitted by law,

We may check information provided by you, or information about you provided by a third parly, with other information held by us. We
may also get information from certain third parties, or give information to them to check the accuracy of information, to prevent or detect
crime, or to protect public funds in other ways, as permitted by law. These third parties include Government Departments and lacat
authorities.

We wiil not disclose information about you to anyone outside Gateshead Council nor use information about you for other purposes
uniess the faw permiis us to.

Gateshead Councit is the Data Controler for the purposes of the Data Protection Act 1998. If you want o know more about what
information we have about you, or the way we use your information, you can ask at Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead, NES 1HH

Page 38



Part 3 ~ Signatures (Please read guidance note 3)

Signature of representative or representatives soficitor or cther duly authorised agent. (See guidance note
4} If signing on behalf of the representative please state in what capacity.

Signature Date 9 October 2017
J Bradley

Capacity | On behalf of the Licensing Authority

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this
representation. (Please read guidance note 5)

Post Town Post Code

E-mail Address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. The ground(s) for representation must be based on one or more of the licensing objectives.
Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems, which are included in
the grounds for representation, if applicable.

3. The representation form must be signed.

4. Arepresentative’s agent (for example solicitor} may sign the form on their behalf provided that they
have actual authority to do so.

5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this representation.

6. For further information about the Licensing Act 2003 please contact; The Licensing Act Section,
Development & Public Protection, Civic Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead Tyne and Wear NE8 1HH
Tel: 0191 433 3918 or 0191 433 3178

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Durham Road Service Station, DH3 2PF
Supplementary Information

1. Gateshead Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy

Gateshead Council’'s Statement of Licensing Policy states, “The Licensing Authority will normally
apply stricter conditions, including controls on licensing hours, where licensed premises are in
residential areas. The Licensing Authority will expect to see that applicants have considered the
impact that the following factors may have on the potential for public nuisance:
* The location of premises and proximity to residential and other noise sensitive premises
* The hours of opening, particularly between 23:00 and 07:00 hours”
It also states, “It is expected that premises whose primary activity is off licence sales will not
normally be open between 23:00 and 07:00 hours. Applicants wishing to operate beyond 23:00
hours will need to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Licensing Authority, in their operating
schedule, that there will be no significant disturbance to members of the public living, working or
otherwise engaged in normal activity around the premises concerned.”
| do not consider that the operating schedule provides sufficient detail in these respects.

2. Alcohol related harm in Gateshead and the local area

The harm experienced across Gateshead is highlighted in the following statistics:

e Gateshead currently has the 3" highest rate of alcohol related admissions (persons,
narrow) to hospital in England

e Since 2008/09 the rate of admissions to hospital for alcohol related conditions has
increased by 23.63%

e Gateshead has the highest rate for alcohol related hospital admissions in the North East
(males)

e Since 2008/09 the rate of admissions to hospital for alcohol related conditions for females
has increased by 34.33%. The projected trend is for this indicator to continue to increase.

000), Green dot — Licensed premises

Newcastie upon

421004, 558577 Sunderland
waras

O None
OVerall IMD 2015 —=- == === == wom ms oo e om o o e e e e e e e

O 9% People Within Worst 20% IMD 2015

O Al Crime 2013/15 (Rate per 1,000) ~ — — - — - — — == - = —

O Al Alcohol Related Crime 2013/15 (Rate per 1,000) =~ = = - =

O Violent Crime 2013/15 (Rate per 1,000) — - - = =x e = e ==

O Alcohol Related Violent Crime 2013/15 (Rate per 1,000) - - — - (@)

O Sexual Offences 2013/15 (Rate per 1,000) v

O Alcohol Related Sexual Offences 2013/15 (Rate per 1.000)
0OS base Aerials
[0 o}

Durham Road Service
Station

©Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey Gateshead Council 100019132

Page 41



e 449% of alcohol related crimes occurred between 23:00hrs and 04:00hrs
o The peak time for these crimes is midnight — 01:00hrs

Figure 2: Police report domestic violence incidents (Gateshead 25.4 and Birtley 51.6 per 1,000, 2014-15)
¢ 43% of domestic abuse crimes in Gateshead involve alcohol
¢ Alcohol-fuelled domestic violence is more likely to result in victim injury and the need for
medical care (BMA, 2008)
e 44% of alcohol related crimes occurred between 23:00hrs and 04:00hrs
e The peak time for these crimes is midnight — 01:00hrs

Newcastié upon Tyne

BEAYGON =Y N

\ @ Newcastle upon Tyne

Sunderland

420243, 561363 —
oI, v s o Y = s

O Sexual Offences 2013/15 (Rate per 1,000)

O Alcohol Related Sexual Offences 2013/15 (Rate per 1,000)
O% Pupils With 1+ Unauthorised School Absences 2014/15
QO Police Reported Domestic Violence Incidents 2014/15 (Rate per 1,000)@
O All Fires 2013/15 (Rate per 1,000)

O Alcohol Related ASE 2013/15 (Rate per 1,000) — — — — — —-—— O

O Proportion In Treatment Who Live With Children - Alcohol 2013/15
O Proportion In Treatment Who Live With Children - Alcohol And Non-Opiate v
2013115

Durham Road Service
Statinn

OS base Aerials

®

County Durham

©Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey Gateshead Council 100018132

e

Figure 3: Alcohol related anti-social behaviour (Gateshead 13.8 and Birtley 34.2 per 1,000

® e

. ' . o Newcastié upon Tyne

2013-15)

Newcastle upon Tyne

; e —— Sunderland
b A R IR oy [T )
O Sexual Offences 2013/15 (Rate per 1,000)
O Alcohol Related Sexual Offences 2013/15 (Rate per 1,000)
O % Pupils With 1+ Unautorised School Absences 2014/15
O Police Reported Domestic Violence Incidents 2014/15 (Rate per 1,000/0
O Al Fires 2013115 (Rate per 1,000)
O Alcohol Related ASE 2013/15 (Rate per 1,000) — — — — — ——— @
O Proportion In Treatment Who Live With Chidren - Alcohol 2013/15

O Proportion In Treatment Who Live With Children - Alcohol And Non-Opiate W/
2013/15

OS base Aerials

Durham Road Service
Station

County Durham

S ®

©Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey Gateshead Council 100019132

Page 42



It has been noted that there has been a 1% reduction in the last year, however, the police highlight
the significant increases in alcohol related ASB in the years prior to this and that residents in the
Gateshead south area highlight this issue as their greatest concern (LA and Police survey, March
2016)

Sunderland

421396, 557117 £
O Total Road User Casualties 2012/15 — - = e o o oo oe -
O % Binge Drinking Estimates 2012

O % Hazardous Drinking Estimates 2012
O Families Gateshead Where Health Is Cited As An Issue 2016
O Proportion of Children Living In Poverty 2013

O Life Expectancy - Male 2008/12

O Life Expectancy - Female 2008/12

Durham Road Service

County Durham

O Aicohol Retated Hospial Admissions 2013/14 (Rate per 100,000) —~ O, Station
O Alconol Related Ambuiance Callouts 2014/15 (Rate per 1,000} — — ~ ©
OS base Aerials
0! ®
@©Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey Gateshead Council 100019132 =

3. Peak times of demand on our emergency services

Figure 5: Alcohol Related Incidents over a 24 hour period

Incidents by Time and Local Authority

Local Authority @ Gateshead

0
12:00 AM 3:00 AM 6:00 AM 9:00 AM 12:00 PM 3:00 PM 6:00 PM 9:00 PM

Page 43



Figure 6: Alcohol related crime over a 24 hour period

Crimes by Time and Local Authority

Local Authority @ Gateshead
100

80
60

40

20

0
12:00 AM 6:00 AM 12:00 PM 6:00 PM

Figure 7: Gateshead’s Alcohol Related Ambulance Call Outs (North East Ambulance Service —
NHS Foundation Trust, 2016-17)

Alcohol Related Ambulance Call Outs 2016/17

120 -

100 4

ED_

ED_

4‘D-

20 S

D I D L L L L L L L L L L O O O O OBEBEEABEBEEEAEEEEIEEE
S EEEESEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
= MM o= D e =T = T e T T ==y
o e o oooeooo— "800 00000a0=="
#ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ##HﬁEE#########ﬁﬁE
SEEEEGSEScc EEEEEEEEECE L
SERRIR8R35EES38858828EE¢E
- A -

Page 44



Figure 8: Gateshead Alcohol Related Ambulance Call Outs (North East Ambulance Service — NHS
Foundation Trust, 2016-17)

Alcohol Related Ambulance Call Outs 2015/16

B Home
B Public
Other

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Birtley Service Station

Please note, the location of the premises is represented on the map by a black circle

Anti-Social Behaviour

Please note, in Gateshead, incidents of anti-social behaviour recorded by Northumbria Police
during the period fell by 1%

e Between 20/05/2015 and 19/05/2016 there were 394 incidents of anti-social behaviour in
the Birtley ward
e Between 20/05/2016 and 19/05/2017 there were 321 incidents of anti-social behaviour in
the Birtley ward

Anti-Social Behaviour - Birtley Ward
20/05/2015 - 19/05/2016

Anti-Social Behaviour - Birtley Ward
20/05/2016 - 19/05/2017

ASB Birtley Ward
20/05/2015 - 1910512016
e High

-,
[ ey s Bounary

ASB Birtley Ward
20/05/2016 - 19/05/2017
e High

-,

[ ey v s

Date: 04/10/2017

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey Gateshead Council
100019132

IDate: 04/10/2017

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey Gateshead Council
100019132

Page 47




IAlcohol-related Anti-Social Behaviour
Birtley Ward
20/05/2015 - 19/05/2016

i

Alcohol-related ASB Birtley Ward
20/05/2015 - 19/05/2016
— Hich

-
[: Birtley Ward Boundary

/Alcohol-related Anti-Social Behaviour
Birtley Ward
20/05/2016 - 19/05/2017

20/05/2016 - 19/05/2017
o High

-
[ etay wars Bounaary

Date: 04/10/2017 ?a(;on:wgr‘\;zop/ngm and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey Gateshead Council |

| Date: 04/10/2017 fm?o%q;mm and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey Gateshead Council

Page 48



Crime

Please note, in Gateshead, recorded crime during the period increased by 34%

e Between 20/05/2015 and 19/05/2016 there were 527 crimes recorded in the Birtley ward

e More than a third of recorded crimes in this ward occurred between 20:00hrs and 01:00hrs
(180 crimes; 34% of total)

e Between 20/05/2016 and 19/05/2017 there were 696 crimes recorded in the Birtley ward,
an increase of 32% (+169 crimes)

e The peak times for recorded crime during the latter period are 17:00hrs— 18:00hrs (53
crimes), 20:00hrs — 21:00hrs (48 crimes) and midnight — 01:00hrs (48 crimes)

Crime - Birtley Ward
20/05/2015 - 19/05/2016

Crime Birtley Ward
20/05/2015 - 19/05/2016
oy High

-
[ v wascounary

Crime - Birtley Ward
20/05/2016 - 19/05/2017

Crime Birtley Ward
20/05/2016 - 19/05/2017
oy High

-,
I: Birtiey Ward Boundary

Date: 04/10/2017

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey Gateshead Council
100019132

| Date: 04/10/2017

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey Gateshead Council
100019132

Page 49




e Between 20/05/2015 and 19/05/2016 there were 52 crimes recorded in the Birtley ward
that were deemed to be alcohol-related, equating to 10% of all recorded crime in this ward
during the period

o 44% of crimes occurred between 23:00hrs and 04:00hrs

e Between 20/05/2016 and 19/05/2017 there were 70 crimes recorded in the Birtley ward
that were deemed to be alcohol-related

e The peak time for these crimes is midnight — 01:00hrs

Alcohol-related Crime - Birtley Ward

Alcohol-related Crime - Birtley Ward
20/05/2016 - 19/05/2017

20/05/2015 - 19/05/2016

Wi

Alcohol-related Crime Birtley Ward Alcohol-related Crime Birtley Ward
20/05/2015 - 19/05/2016 20/05/2016 - 19/05/2017

o High High

-, -

‘: Birtley Ward Boundary E Birtley Ward Boundary

Date: 04/1 0/201 7 © Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey Gateshead Councll

100019132

g ocC right and database rights 2017 Ord Survey Gateshead Council
IDate. 04/10/2017  S5mwncopriontan o narce suvey -

Page 50



Between 20/05/2015 and 19/05/2016 there were 51 crimes recorded in the Birtley ward
that were deemed to be domestic-related, equating to 10% of all recorded crime in this
ward during the period

Between 20/05/2016 and 19/05/2017 there were 50 crimes recorded in the Birtley ward
that were deemed to be domestic-related; 16% of these occurred between midnight and

01:00hrs

Domestic-relate
20/05/2015 - 19

Domestic-related Crime - Birtley Ward
20/05/2016 - 19/05/2017

d Crime - Birtley Ward
/05/2016

100019132

Domestic-related Crime Birtley Ward gn Domestic-related Crime Birtley Ward
20/05/2015 - 19/05/2016 [ 20/05/2016 - 19/05/2017
High ﬁ " o High
L { L
e % -
\:’ Birtiey Ward Boundary B Birtiey Ward Boundary
Date: 04/10/2017 © Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey Gateshead Council I |Date' 04/10/2017 egomnczop/ngnlandmmase rights 2017 Ordnance Survey Gateshead Council
» Ad 10001913

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



/&xf’ﬁgwmx =2

= Ga teshea ;
HH C @mﬁé e

STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY
Licensing Act 2003
7 January 2016 - 6 January 2021

7 January 2016 1

Page 53



1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Foreword by Councillor John McElroy

The Licensing Act has been in force now for ten years, and has contributed to a
significant change in how licensable activities are carried on in the Borough.

in Gateshead, both the ficensed trade and its patrons are, on the whole,
responsidle and sensitive to the needs of the communities in which licensed

activities take placa.

However, the trend away from drinking in pubs and clubs to consumption of alcohol
at home presents a diffarent set of challenges in terms of minimizing the harms that

cah arise.

There has been an increase in the availability and accessibility of alcohol, and a
broadening of the type of premises where it is made available. Consequently, there
is now an increased role for the licensing regime to play in safeguarding the most
vulnerable members of our society.

The ficensing regime is not only about the sale and supply of alcoho! — the
provision of regulated entertainment and late night refreshment equally present
chailenges to ensure that crime, disorder and public nuisance are prevented, public

safely.is-promoted-and-children-are protected from-harm o

There is no single answer to the challenges we will face in the coming months and
years; but the licensing regime is key to giving residents and responsible authorities
an opportunity to have their say on important matters that can impact their
community, and | would encourage everyone to utilise it to its fullest potential.

Strategic Context

The Councif's overall vision for Gateshead, as described in Gateshead Strategic
Partnership's Community Strategy ~ Vision 2030 and the Council's Corporate Plan

15;

“l.ocal people realising their full potential, enjoying the best quality of life in a
healthy, equal, safe, prosperous and sustainable Gateshead”

The licensing of premises plays an important role Iin realising this vision,
contributing significantly to the Econamy, Environment, and Health areas contained
within Priority 1 of the Corporate Plan, in providing safe and accessible venues that
promote healthy lifestyles and contribute to economy of the Borough.

This Policy sets out what this Licensing Authority expects of the people that it
authorises to carry out licensable activities in the Borough of Gateshead.

Applicants and licensees are of course expected to be familiar with the relevant
legislation and the National Guidance issued by the Home Office, but they are also
expected to be familiar with the exigencies of the locality that they operate in. This
applies 1o everyone seeking to carry on licensable activities in the Borough,
whether they are a large national chain or a small community premises.

7 January 2016 3

Page 54



2.6

3.1

4o
[

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The promotion of the iicensing objectives underpins every decision thal the
Licensing Authority makes. How the objectives are best promoted can vary from
place to place, and depending on the nature and scale of the activities that are 1o
be carried out. This Policy sets out the issues that are of particular relevance or
concern within Gateshead, and the approaches that this Licensing Autherity would
expect responsible licensees to take into account in their operation.

The Policy links closely with a number of key plans and strategies produced by the
Gouncil and its partners, as set out below in the section headed ‘Integration with

other legislation, policies and guidance’,

Local context

Gateshead is located on the southern bank of the river Tyne, opposite Newcastle
upon Tyne 1o the north, and bordering County Durham to the south,
Northumbetland to the west and South Tyneside/Sunderland to the east. It is a
constantly changing borough combining modern facilities with a fascinating
heritage. The borough stretches almost 13 miles along the south bank of the river
Tyne and covers 55 square miles, making it the largest of the five Tyne and Wear

authorities.

~Gateshead-is-a-borough-of-contrasts: it -has a targe urban hub centred arsund e

main town centre area in Bridges ward and has a number of smaller urban centres
and busy employment areas such as Blaydon, Whickham, Felling and Birtley,
However, around two thirds of the borough is rural with numerous small settlements
such as Kibblesworth, Sunniside, Chopwell and High Spen.

Built on traditional industries of mining and heavy engineering, the 1930's saw
diversification through the development of the Team Valley Trading Estate (TVTE]),
the first trading estate of its type in the UK. Centrally located for the region the
TVTE has become prominent for transport and distribution activities and is the
borough's most prestigious employment centre, attracting the highest number of
inward commuters to the borough on a daily basis.

The 19705 saw the decline of many of the region's traditional industries. A high
proportion of those who fived in Gateshead worked in these industries, resulting in
unemployment and high levels of deprivalion and financial/social exclusion, the
impact of which is still being felt today. In the 1980's Gateshead saw the
development of the MetroCentre, now boasting over two million sqg ft of retail ang
feisure floor space, one of the UK's and Europe's largest shopping centres.

The urban core, shared with Newcastle, is the focus of regeneration, promoting
growth through the digital economy, knowledge-based businesses and cultural-ed
regeneration. Major initiatives such as the Sage Gateshead, BALTIC Centre for
Gontemporary Art, Gateshead College and the Galeshead Millennium Bridge have

all been developed over recent years.

Gateshead has a population of around 200,000 living in 90,600 households. The
population has reduced by around 13,000 since the 1980's but has grown over the
last decade by around 8,000. This growth has been most significant for older age
groups with an 11% increase in 45-64 year olds and an 11% increase in those
aged 65 and over. In contrast, the number of 0-24 ysar olds fell slightly by 0.7%

7 Ianuary 2016 4

Page 55



3.7

3.8

3.9

over the decade. Popuiation projections from the Office for National Statistics
predict that this ageing population trend will continue inlo the future, becoming

maore pronounced as life expectancy continues o increase.,

Crime and anti-social behaviour in Gateshead

The number of recorded crimes across the Borough that were linked to alcohol has
increased year on year, with 1,386 alcohol-related crimes recorded in 2014/15
which was an 11% increase from 2013/14, compared to a 7% increase in all crime.

More than half the alcohol-related crimes in the Borough in 2014/15 were violence
against the person, with significant increases particularly in the number of assaulis.
It ts notable that whilst incidents of the most serious violence are still relatively
infrequent, they have more than doubled in the last year. There have also been
significant increases in the numbers of alcohol-related sexual offences and

burglaries in the Borough in that time.

Temporal profiles show that atmost half of all alcohol-related crimes in the Borough
are reporfed on Friday late evenings / Saturday early mornings, Saturday late
evenings / Sunday early mornings and (to a lesser extent) Sunday late evenings /

Monday early mornings.

- 8.0

3.11

3.12

313

3.14

Data provided by Northumbria Police enables the Council to identify the most
viilnerable locations throughout the Borough in terms of alcohol-related crimes, and
to track trends over time. Information about these areas is contained in 'Local
Licensing Guidance' documents which are described in further detail below, and
will be available from the Council's website and upon reguest,

Public health in Gateshead

In 2012 the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 introduced public health as a
responsible authority under the Licensing Act 2003,

Public health is “the science and art of promoting and protecting health and well-
being, preventing ill-heaith and prolonging life through the organised efforts of
society." The Public Heaith Outcomes Framework acknowledges that health is
influenced not only by lifestyle choices but also by a range of wider determinants,
including the physical environment, domestic abuse, violent crime and noise

nuisance.

Gateshead Council recognises the impact upen population-level health that alcohol
consumption can cause. While the protection of public health is not a discrete
licensing objective, it can where appropriate permeate each of the licensing

objectives,

Each year Gateshead's Director of Public Health publishes an Annual Report, the
most recent at the time of wiiting being published in October 2014. The report
recognises that alcoho! is a complex soclal issue which forms part of our averyday
social fabric, is a source of pleasure and enjoyment to many; but is also a
potentially addictive substance which is promoted by powerful commercial forces,
especially to young people. it highlights the growing evidence of rising alcohol

7 January 2016 5

Page 56



3.15

3.16

3.17

harm on the health of people in Gateshead, and focusses on approaches o
tackling alcohol harm.

The report identifies, for instance, that:

* Around one in b secondary school / higher education students in Gateshead

admit to drinking alcoho!; and
* The number of alcohoi specific hospital admissions for secondary school /

higher education students in Gateshead is increasing.

Public health data enables the Council to identify the most vuinerable locations in
the Borough in terms of alcohol-related harm, and to track trends over time. This
data can be particutarly refevant to the protection of children from harm, and may
also assist in the prevention of crime and disorder, public nuisance and to public

safety.

Local Licensing Guidance

Different localities within the Borough have different characters, and challenges,
both of which can change over time depending on a range of factors. To assist
applicants and licensees in their understanding of local issues that they should be

“cognisant of, from timie 1o tiie the Counei publishes and lipdaies “Local Licensing

3.18

3.19

3.20

Guidance' documents on its website.

The Local Licensing Guidance provides information about the causes of serious
and chronic concern in these localities. The areas covered by the guidance can
vary depending on the nature of the problems that are identified, so may retate lo
the whole of a particular Ward or for instance 1o street level. The guidance can
include a wide range of information that is considered to be relevant to those who
seek o carry on licensable activities within the area, for instance;

* The physical environment (including transport, school walking routes,
blocks of flats, commercial / residential proximity, etc)

» Existing licensed premises

* Health data (such as hospital admissions for under-18s, ambulance calls
for alcohol related reasons)

« Crime and disorder hotspots

* Known areas of congregation

* Local initiatives (such as Pubwatch, Offwatch, Community Alcohol
Partnerships etc)

* Local concerns about the promotion of the licensing objectives {including
from Ward Members, community leaders, GPs, schools, etc)

The Local Licensing Guidance will be produced by the Council's Public Health team
with the input of Responsible Authorities and other stakeholders as appropriate;
and presented to and approved by the Council's full Licensing Committee.

It is recommended that applicants and licensees have regard to these documents
when considering their operating schedule. In particular, where the Local Licensing

Guidance identifies measures that it is believed will help to promote the licensing
objectives in respect of certain licensable activities due to the issues that have been

7 January 2016 &

Page 57



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

[$5]
ki

5.2

53

identilied, if an applicant or licensee chooses nol to adopt those measures this may
result in representations being made.

Legal Context

This Statement of Licensing Policy has been prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and the Guidance issued by the Home Office under Section

182 of the Act.
The Licensing Authority is responsible for:

* the ficensing of licensable activities under the Licensing Act 2003 (The Act)
* ensuring that those who are authorised under the Act comply with the

requirements; and
* ensuring that only those who are duly authorised to carry out licensable

activities do so,

This document sets out the Licensing Authority's policy as to how it will fulfil its
obligations and achieve its strategic aims in this respect.

This Policy should be read in conjunction with the Act itself, the Home Office

~Guidanee;-and the-other poficies-and-guidance that are referred 1o in this doCURSHT.

This Licensing Authority regards each of the Licensing Objective to be of equal
importance.

This document sets out the policies the Licensing Authority will generally apply to
promote the Licensing Objectives when making decisions under the Act, and when
addressing non-compliance with the Act itself or any authorisations issued under
the Act. The Licensing Authority will consider deviating from the policy on a case by
case basis, where it believes it to be appropriate and proportionate in all the

relevant circumstances.
integration with other legislation, policies and guidance

Anyone who is or who seeks to be authorised under the Act to carry out licensable
activities in the Borough of Gateshead should be aware of the other legislation,
policies and guidance that may apply to their business. Failure to comply with other
legislation and/or regulatory regimes can indicate that a licensee is irresponsible,
which may call into question their ability to adequately promote the Licensing

Objectives.

Aithough from the perspective of the business proprietor, there may be an element
of crossover between licensing and other regimes, they are separate and are

treated as such by the Council,
Applicants and licensees need to be aware of and have regard to:

Gateshead Strategic Partnership’s Community Strategy — Vision 2030
the Gateshead Local Plan

Substance Misuse Strategy

Culture Strategy

* % o @

7 January 2016 7

Page 58



* (Gateshead Transport Straiegy & Tyne & Wear Logal Transport Plan
+ The Local Government Declaration on Alcohol signed by Galeshead Council

in June 2015

The Licensing Authority will seek to achieve integration with relevant stralegies and

5.4
their aims in its decision making.
Human Rights

5.5 The Licensing Authority will have particular regard to the foliowing relevant
provisions of the European Convention on Human Rights:

* Article 6 that in determination of civif rights and obligations everyone is
entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an
independent and impartial tribunal established by law

* Atticle 8 that everyone has the right to respect for their home and private life;
and

s Aricle 1 of the First Protocol that every person is entitled to the peaceful
enjoyment of thelr possessions.

Equality and Diversity

5.6  Applicants and licensees should be aware of their obligations under the Equality
Act 2010 and the characteristics protected by the legislation which are:

. Age

¢ Disability

* Gender reassignment

+ Marriage and civil partnership

+  Pregnancy and maternity

+ Race

» Heligion and belief

¢ Sex; and

« Sexual orientation

57  His expected that respansible licensees will be sensitive to the needs of their varied
customer base and prepared to make reasonable adjustments to accommodate
those neecls.

5.8  The Equality Act 2010 also requires the Licensing Authority 1o have due regard to
the need to climinate discrimination, harassment and viclimisation; advance
equality of opportunity; and foster good relations between people with different
protected characteristics. Each application will be considered with this in mind.
Crime and disorder

5.8  Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 introduced a wide range of

measures for preventing crime and disorder and imposed a duty on the Council,
Northumbria Police and others to consider crime and disorder reduction in the
exercise of all their duties. The reduction of crime and disorder is integral to this

Council's approach to the Licensing Act.

7 January 2016 B

Page 59



5.18

5.19

5.20

individuals wha cause disturbance, disorder, use drugs or use or threaten violence
in and around licensed premises. By acting collectively in excluding such peaple
from a number of premises in the area, this means that the problem is not simply
moved from one pub to the next. Pubwatch schemes have been found lo be
effective tools in tackling anti-social behaviour in many areas where the schemes
are well run and there is a significant level of participation by licence hoiders in the
borough. The Gateshead Alcohot Harm Reduction Strategy 2013-2015 recognises
the importance of the Pubwaich scheme and envisages it being used {0 share and
develop best practice and as a forum for training.

Regional and national working

The Licensing Authority participates in regional working through the North East
Strategic Licensing Group, which is comprised of representatives of each of the
twelve North East Licensing Authorities, and forms part of the North East Public

Protection Partnership.

The Licensing Authority also works closely with Balance — the North East Alcohol
Office, to achieve an integraled approach across the region and with key partners

such as the Police.

From the national perspective, representatives of the Licensing Autharity participate

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

in the Local Gavernment Association’s Licensing Policy Forum, and the Licensing
Special Area of Activity for Lawyers in Local Government.

General Principles of the Policy

Each application will be determined on Its merits having regard 1o this Policy,
Guidance under Section 182 of the Act, the Act itself and supporting Regulations.

The Licensing Authority considers:

* the effective and responsible management of premises
* instruction, training and supervision of staff; and
» the adoption of best practice

to be amongst the most important control measures for the achievement of alf the
licensing objectives. For this reason, the Licensing Authority will expect these
elements to be specifically considered and addressed within an applicant's

operating schedule.

Appticants who do not clearly demonstrate how they intend to address these issues
in their operating schedules should expect their applications to be objected to,

inchuding by the Licensing Authority,

Also, licensees whose practice does not meet this expectation may have their
licence reviewed, and as above this may be triggered by the Licensing Authority

itself,

7 January 2016 11

Page 60



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Licensing Objectives

Applicanis wili need to provide evidence to the Licensing Authorily that, in respect
of each of the four licensing objectives, suitable and sufficient measures, as
detailed in their Operating Schedule, will be implemented and maintained, and will
be relevant to the individual style and characteristics of their premises and events.

Pravention of Crime and Disorder

The Licensing Authority will expect 1o see evidence that the followmg specific
matters that impact on crime and disorder have been addressed in the Operating

Schedule of the premises:

« The capability of the person who is in charge o run the premises during
trading hours or when Regulated Entertainment is provided 1o effectively and
responsibly manage and supervise the premises, including associated open

aredas

* The steps to be taken in the absence of the Designated Premises
Supetrvisor to effectively manage the business.

.+ The steps taken or to be 1aken 1o ensure that appropriate. instruction, training
and supervision is given to those employed or engaged in the premises to
prevent incidents of crime and disorder

* The measures taken or to be taken to raise staff awareness and discourage
and prevenl the use or supply of ilfegal drugs on the premises

* The features currently in place or planned for physical securily at the
premises, such as lighting outside the premises

= The policies that have been determined in respect of adoption of appropriate
existing and future best practice guidance {eg Safer Clubbing, the National
Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy Toolkit, etc)

= Any arrangements which the licence holder proposes to work in partnership
with the Counclil, palice and other traders in estabi;shmg a method of co-
ordinating closing times to prevent crowds emerging from premises at the
same time and to prevent migration between premises with different closing

times

¢ Any appropriate additional measures taken or to be taken for the prevemnon
of violence or public disorder

The extent to which the above matters need to be addressed will be dependent on
the individual style, characteristics and location of the premises, and proposed
events and activities. In general however, the Licensing Authority will expect more
comprehensive measures to be in place at late night entertainment venues or in
premises with a history of crime and disorder issues.

-In such premises appropriate additional measures taken or to be taken for the

prevention of violence or public disorder may include:

7 danuary 2016 12

Page 61



7.5

7.6

¢ Provision of effective CCTV both within and around premises
¢ Employment of SIA licensed door staff

* Provision ot toughened or plastic glasses

* Procedures for risk assessing drinks promotions and events such as ‘happy
hours' for the potential to cause crime and disorder and plans for minimising

such risks

The Licensing Authority will have particular regard to representations from the
Paolice in deciding whether the above issues have been adequately addressed. h
will not normally grant an application where representations indicate a potential
negative impact on crime and disorder, unless the applicant can demonsirate
compelling reasons why the application should be approved in the light of these

concemns,

Public Safety
The Licensing Authority will expect to see that applicants have considered the

impact that the foliowing factors. may have on public safety:

7.7

¢ The occupancy capaciy of the premises

* The age, design and fayout of the premises, including means of escape in
the avent of fire

* The nature of the licensable activities to be provided, in particular the sale or
supply of alcohol, and/or the provision of music and dancing and including
whether those activities are of a temporary or permanent nature

* The hours of operation (differentiating the hours of opening from the hours
when licensable activities are provided, if different)

+ Customer profile (eg age, disability)

* The use of special effects such as lasers, pyrotechnics, smoke machines,
etc

The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants who may

need 1o take account of them in their operating schedule, having regard to their

particular type of premises and/or activities: '
* Suitable and sufficient risk assessments

* Effective and responsible management of the premises

* Provision of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to secure
the safety of the premises and patrons

7 fanuary 2016 13

Page 62



Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or
engaged fo secure the safety of premises and patrons

Adoption of best practice guidance {eg Guide 1o FFire Precautions in Existing
Places of Entertainment and like premises, The Evenf Safely Guide, Safety

in Pubs published by the BBPA, and the Safety Guidance for Street Arts,
Carnival, Processions and Large Scale Performances published by

Independent Street Arts Network)
Provision of effective CCTV in and around premises
Provision of toughened or plastic drinking vessels

Implementation of crowd management measures

Proof of reqular testing (and cettification where appropriate) of procedures,
appliznces, systems ete perlinent {o safety)

Prevention of Public Nuisance

7.8

7.10

7.8

The Licensing Authority interprets ‘public nuisance' in its widest sense, and takes it

these matters impact on those living, working or otherwise engaged in normal
aclivity in an area.

The Licensing Authority will normally apply siricter conditions, including controls on
licensing hours, where licensed premises are in residential areas.

The Licensing Authority will expect to see that applicants have considered the
impact that the following factors may have on the potential for public nuisance:

The location of premises and proximity to residential and other noise
sensitive premises

The hours of opening, particularly between 23:00 and 07:00 hours

The nature of activities to be provided, including whether those activilies are
of a temparary or permanent nature and whether they are to be held inside

or outside premises

The design and layout of premises and in particular the presence of noise
limiting features

The occupancy capacity of the premises

The availability of public transport

‘wind down period’ between the end of the ficensable activities and closure
of the premises, i.e. allowing patrons to remaln in the premises for a period
after ficensable activities have ceased, so that people do not disperse en

masse

7 lanuary 2016 14

Page 63



7.1

fast admission time

The folfowing examples of conirol measures are given {0 assist applicants who may
need to take account of them in their operating scheduls, having regard to their
particular type of premises and/or activities:

~limitation-deviceg -

»

effective and responsible management of the premises

appropriate instruction, ftraining and supewrvision of those employed or
engaged to prevent incidents of public nuisance eg 1o ensure customers

leave guietly

operating hours for all or parls (eg garden areas) of premises, including such
mallers as deliveries

adoplion of best practice guidance (eg Good Practice Guide on the Control
of Noise from Pubs and Clubs, produced by the Institute of A.coustics,
Licensed Property: Noise, published by BBPA)

installation of soundproofing, air conditioning, acoustic lobbies and sound

management of people, including staff, and traffic (and resulting queues)
fiaison with public transport providers

siting of external lighting including security lighting

management arrangements for collection and disposal of litter

effective ventilation systems to prevent nuisance from odour

Protection of Children from Harm

7.12 The protection of children is an important issue and the licensing regime has a
fundamental role in achieving this. The protection of children from harm includes

7.13

moral,

psychological and physical harm and applicants are expected to

demonstrate that such facters have been considered in their operating schedules,

Applicants should expect to receive objections in respect of the protection of
chiidren from harm, and licensees should expect their licence to be reviewed,

where:

there have been convictions for serving aicohol to minors or the premises
have a reputation for facilitating underage drinking

there Is a known association with drug taking or dealing

there is a strong element of gambling on the premises

entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is commonly provided

7 January 2016 15

Page 64



7.14

7.15

7.16

8.1

Licensees will be expected to prevent children from viewing films that are
unsuitabie because of the age classification of the fiim that has been imposed by
the British Board of Film Classification or the Licensing Authority.

Anyone intending to provide staff for the supervision of activities for under 18s wilt
be expected to carry out enhanced criminal record checks on all such persons, and
to keep a register which should be available to the Police or authorised Council
officer on request. Applicants who do not put these measures in place should

expect objections to be made to their application.

Where applicants intend to provide any age restricted goods or services it is
expected that they will apply the same standards of age verification in respect of all
age restricted goods or services, thal staff will be regularly trained, and that

appropriate records are kept of training and refusals.

Types of activily that may heighten concern as to the promotion of the
licensing objectives

It has been the experience of this Licensing Authority over the lasl ten years since
the Licensing Act came into force that there are certain types of licensable activity
that tend to require a greater degree of control or a particular emphasis on certain

control. measures.in.order.that.the licensing-objectives.are. effectively. promoted....

8.2

8.3

8.4

Adult enfertainment

The term “adult entertainment’ is not defined in the Licensing Act, but it is taken in
this policy to refer to activities and form of entertainment that may be unsuitable for
children to participate in or to observe. Common examples of adull entertainment
include striptease, lap dancing and other forms of dancing /entertainment with a
sexual content. Other types of activity may also be ‘adult entertainment’ such as the
showing of films that have been certified ‘18’, total fighting, mixed martial arts, and
demonstrations and participation in activities containing elements of bondage,
discipiine, domination, submission, sadism and/or masochism. This list is clearly
not exhaustive, and the Licensing Authority will consider each application on its

merits,

Although adult entertainment is permitted by the Licensing Act, it is necessary thal
licensees set out details of the activities they intend 10 take place in their operating
schedule, so that the Licensing Authorily, responsible bodies and others may take
appropriate steps to ensure that the Licensing Objectives are not undermined. As
such it is important that applicants complete box 'N' of their application form, and
provide as much detait as possible regarding the nature of the proposed activities.

If applicants do not complete box ‘N’ it is the policy of this Licensing Authority to
impose a condition on the licence / certificate (if issued), consistent with the
operating schedule, that prohibits adult entertainment at the premises. If licensees /
certificate holders are then found to have provided adult entertainment in breach of
this condition, they may be prosecuted and/or the licence / certificate may be
reviewed which could lead to the imposition of further conditions, suspension or

revocation.

7 January 2016 i6

Page 65



8.12

8.13

B.14

Applicants and existing licensees / certificate holders should be aware that the
presence of gaming machines in licensed premises is considered to be “adult
entertainment” and requires nofification 1o the licensing authority in box “N” of the
application form otherwise they will not be permitted, as it is the policy of this
licensing authority to add a condition, consistent with the operating schedule of
each premises where box “N" is not completed, prohibiting adult entertainment at
the premises as set out in guidance note 8 of the respective application forms.

Film classification

Where the Licensing Authority is requested to classify a film for exhibition within the
Licensing Authority's area, it will do so if the fitm has not been classified by the
British Board of Film Classification, or such classification is not pending.

When an applicant submits a film for classification, they should provide a copy of
the film to the Licensing Officer, and shouid indicate the rating that they consider
appropriate. The Licensing Officer shall consult with Northumbria Police and the
Local Safeguarding Children Board. The applicant should provide the copy of the
film at least 28 days in advance of the proposed screening. If the applicant is
unable fo provide a copy of the film in DVD format or via a website then they should
liaise with the Licensing Officer to arrange for a screening of the film for the relevant

bodies as above.,

8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

B.19

The Licensing Authority shall have regard to any representations received from the
Local Safeguarding Children Board and Northumbria Police. The Licensing
Authority shall have regard to the classification standards applied by the British
Board of Film Classification. The Licensing Authority shall alse have regard to (but
shall not be bound by) any classification giver to the film by another Licensing

Autharity,

Where a relevant representation is received, the classification of the film shall be
determined by a hearing of the Licensing Sub Committee.

Alcohol sales

It is expected that applicants will set out in their operating schedule the measures
they will take to ensure that a written record is kept of all the names and addresses
of persons who are authorised to sell or supply alcoho! at all times, and that the
written record is made available to Police and/or Council officers immediately upon

request.

It is expected that premises licensed for the sale of alcohol for consiimption off the
premises will adopt responsible marketing practices and concern may be
heightened where alcohol is promoted in such a way as lo encourage people to
drink more than they would ordinarily do and in a manner that doesn't promote the
licensing abjectives, for example quantity based discount prometions and display
and promotion of aleohol products in muitiple positions in a premises.

It is expected that applicants who intend to sell or supply alcohol by defivery or
collection of prepaid orders will include provision in their operating schedules to set
out how they will ensure that they do not:

7 flanuary 2016 18

Page 66



8.20

+ serve alcohol to a perscn who appears to be drunk

» serve alcohol to a person who it is believed will pass it on to persons under
1B years old

* take payment for the aicoho!l at the place where it is served ~ sales should
be pre-paid only

Itis also expected that applicants wili:

» operate an age verification policy of at least a Challenge 25 standard

+ only deliver o residential addresses
¢ only stock delivery vehicles with alcohol that has been pre-ordered

» verify that the person that the alcohol is served to is the person who has
ordered it

¢ only make sales where the purchase price is at least £25 and/or the
minimum unit price of the alcohol is not less than £1 per unit

8.21

B8.22

8.23

Petrol statipns / garages

The Licensing Act prohibits the sale or supply of alcoho! from premises used
primarily as garages. The Section 182 guidance states that premises are used
primarily as a garage if they are used for one or more of the following:

the retaiiing of petrol

the retailing of derv

the sale of motor vehicles; and
the maintenance of motor vehicles

* & 9

It is expected that applicants for premises licences for premises where any of these
aclivities take place will set out in their operating schedule that they will submit
sales data on at least a six monthly basis showing:

» the number of purchases of fuel alone

s the number of purchases of fuel and other goods

» the number of purchases of other goods alone, and
¢ turnover for each of these type of purchases.

Takeaways

The Licensing Authority will generally not permit the sale of alcohol from ‘takeaway’
premises that are licensed for late night refreshment, due to the inherent potential
for late night alcohol fuelied crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour and the
difficuities of addressing such behaviour where the consumption of the alcohol and
associated behaviour takes place away from the premises themselves, often in
residential areas. Applicants seeking approval to seli alcohol from ‘takeaway’

7 lanuary 2016 19

Page 67



8.24

premises will need {o clearly demonstrate how they wilt ensure that their activities
will not lead to such problems.

Qutside areas

Where premises include an outside area it is expected that the operating schedule
will set ouf how the applicant will address:

* The provision of appropriate bins and other receptacles for litler generaled
by patrons

* Measures to reduce the amount of noise generated by patrons, particularly
late at night. This may include door supervision, closure of oulside areas
after a particular time, restricting re-admission to the premises after a

particular time, etc

* Provision and placement of appropriate street furniture to prevent persons
‘spiling out’ onto public highway in the vicinity of the premises

» Provision of CCTV covering enfrances and exits, external areas, and
surrounding public highways

9.1

9.2

Licensing Hours

it is expected that premises whose primary activity is off licence sales will not
normally be open between 23:00 and 07:00 hours. Applicants wishing to operate
beyond 23:00 hours will need to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Licensing
Authority, in their operating schedule, that there will be no significant disturbance ta
members of the public fiving, working or otherwise engaged in normal activity
around the premises concerned. Opening hours beyond 23:00 hours will generally
be considered to be more acceptable for premises in commercial or tourist areas
with high levels of public transport availability, rather than premises in

predominately residertial areas.

When considering applications, in respect of hours of operation, the Licensing
Authority will take the foliowing into consideration:

-+ Whether the premises is located in a predominantly retail or entertainment
area

* The nature of the proposed activities to be provided in the premises

» Whether there are any arrangements to ensure adequate availability of
hackney carriages and private hire vehicles and appropriate places for

picking up and setting down passengers

*  Whether there is an appropriate amount of car parking, readlily accessible to
the premises, and in places where the parking and use of vehicles will not
cause demonstrable adverse impact to local residents

7 January 2016 20

Page 68



8.3

10.

¢  Whether the operating schedule agreed with Council Officers indicates that
the applicant is taking appropriate steps to comply with the licensing
objective of preventing public nuisance

» Whether the licensed activity, parlicularly if located in areas of the highest
levels of recorded crime, may result in a reduction or increase in. crime or

anti-social behaviour

¢ Whether the licensed activilies are likely to cause adverse impact especially
on local residents, and that, if there is a potential to cause adverse impact,
appropriate measures will be put in place to prevent it.

+  Whather there will be any increase in the cumulative adverse impact from
these or similar activities, on an adjacent residential area

ln the case of shops, stores and supermarkets selling alcohol, the Licensing
Autharity will normally expect the hours during which alcohol is sold to match the
normal trading hours during which other sales take place, in order to reduce the
potentiat for disturbance or disorder,

Operating Schedules

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

Operating schedules should set out the licensable activities that are intended to be

carried out and how it is intended that this happens. Operating schedules should
be sufficlently detailed and clear for interested parties and responsible authorities to
understand how the applicant or licensee will promote the licensing objectives.
When considering the promotion of the licensing objectives, applicants and
licensees should have due regard to the context of the focality that they seek to
operate in, and be mindful of any particular concerns that relate to that locality.

For instance, applicants and licensees are expected to have regard to any Local
Licensing Guidance in respect of the locality they propose to serve.

Applicants are expected to ensure that their operaling schedule enables the
Licensing Authority, responsible authorities and interested parties to understand:

»  What ficensable activities are intended 1o be carried out

*  When licensable aclivities will be carried out ~ i.e. between what hours, on
what days and at what times of year

¢ When the premises will be open to the public for non-licensed activities

« Whether alcohol is intended to be sold for consumption off the premises
(including where it will be defivered to customers)

+ (Where the sale or supply of alcohol is intended at premises with a Premises
Licence) who the Designated Premises Supervisor will be and what his / her

address is

7 January 2016 21

Page 69



10.5

11,

11.3

= What steps will be taken to promote 1he Licensing Objectives.

It is recommended that applicants contact responsible authorities when preparing
operaling schedules to discuss any relevant concerns.

Designated Premises Supervisor

Designated Premises Supervisors have an important role to play in ensuring that
the measures to promote the licensing objectives that are set out in an operating

schedule are put into practice on a day o day basis.

Where there is a requirement for premises lo have a Designated Premises
Supervisor, it is expected that the person will be a key person related o the
premises, so that matters arising can be dealt with as quickly as possible.

ft is expected that a Designated Premises Supervisor will have day to day
responsibility for running the premises and will be present at the premises at least
50% of the time in a seven day week that the premises are open for the carrying on

of licensable activities.

Where the Designated Premises Supervisor is not available at the premises for

whatever reason, the Licensing-Authority. will expect.an.individual {0 .be nominated

12,

12.1

2.2

as a point of contact who will have details of where the Designated Premises
Supervisor can be contacted,

Where there are problems associated with the running of a premises that stem from
the DPS’s performance of that role, they may be removed from the role by the

Licensing Sub-Committge.

Conditions

Whilst the Licensing Act sets out the regulatory framework that applies to all
licensees, conditions can be added to individual licences to prescribe how the
licensable activities are to be carried out having regard to all the relevant individual

circumstances.

There are three types of condition:

* mandatory condilions imposed by the Secretary of State - applicants and
licensees are expected to comply with the relevant mandatory conditions
that apply to the activities they carry oul, and to be aware that these
mandatory conditions change from time to time. The Home Office issued
guidance in respect of these mandatory conditions in October 2014:

nttps/fiwww.gov. sk/government/uploads/sysiem/uploads/attachment
datafile/350507/2014-08-29 MC Guidance vi O.pdi.

¢ conditions imposed voluntarily by the applicant / licensee — these
conditions will be consistert with the applicant / licensee's operating
schedule, although the wording may be amended o ensure clarity and
enforceability. Applicants and licensees should nole that in line with this
Policy, in certain cases the Licensing Authorily will assume unless

7 January 2016 22

Page 70



12.3

13,

informed otherwise that applicanis are volunteering conditions. For
instance, as above where an applicant does not indicate an intention to
provide adult entertainment by ticking box ‘N’ on their application form, it
will be assumed that they are volunteering a condition not to provide
adult entertainment al the premises; and

¢ conditions imposed at a hearing ~ the Licensing Sub-Committee may
impose conditions on a licence where it considers it appropriate to do so.
Any such conditions will be appropriate to the promotion of the licensing
objectives and proportionate to the problems that the Sub-Commiittee find

in relation to the premises.

The Licensing Authority does not impose ‘standard’ conditions on licences, but
there are certain factors that most premises that carry out certain licensable
activities should take into account. A pool of model conditions is set out in
Appendix 1, which applicants should consider when preparing their operating

schedule.

When things go wrong

Compiaints about licensed premises

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

The Licensing Authority will investigate complaints about both licensed premises
where licensable activities are taking place but not in accordance with the relevant
authorisation; and unlicensed premises where licensable activities are taking place

without authorisation.

Complainants will usually, in the first instance, be encouraged to raise the
complaint directly with the licensee or business concerned, as this can often be the
quickest and most effective way for the person carrying on the licensable activity to
understand the negative impact of the activity.

Where appropriate, the Licensing Authority will initially endeavour to seek a
resolution through informal means.

Where appropriate, the Licensing Authotity may pass any complaint on for
investigation by any other statutory agency under whose enforcement responsibility

the complaint fails.

Failing to comply with the Licensing Act

The Council delivers a wide range of enforcement services, aimed at safeguarding
the environment and the community and at providing a 'level playing field on which
businesses can fairly trade. The administration and enforcement of the licensing
regime is one of these services. The BRDO has published a Regulators' Code,

which the Council complies with:

hitpsfwww gov.uld/government/oublicationsdreaulaiors-code

The Council will base its enforcement activities around the principles of
consistency, transparency and proportionality,

7 fanuary 2016 23

Page 71



Exclude a licensable activity from the licence or certificate

Remove the designaled premises supervisor
Suspend the licence or certificate for a period not exceeding three months

Revoke the licence or certificate.

* & ¢ @

13.14 The review process is intended to enable the Licensing Authority to take

appropriate timely measures ic promote the Licensing Objectives in respect of
individual premises. A review can take place even if it would be disproportionate to
revoke a licence or certificate, as some lesser measure can be {aken, as above.

13.15 Also, because the review process is intended fo address the future conduct of the

licence holder, a review can take place regardiess of any other measures that may
be open to the interested party or responsible body. For instance, if a licence holder
is found to have sold age restricted products to a minor, it is not necessary for a
prosecution (or indeed a successiul prosecution) to take place in respect of that
sale bafore a review is brought, as the review would consider the steps appropriate

to prevent fulure underage sales.

Summary reviews

13.16 The Police may request a sumimary review in serious cases of crime and disorder,

and in_which. case. within 48 hours. of .the application.the. Licensing. Authority will

consider whether any interim steps are required pending completion of the review
process. This may include immediate suspension of the relevant licence.

14. Delegation and Decision Making

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

The Council has established a Licensing Commiltee to administer its functions
under the licensing Act 2003. Powers and functions have also been defegated to
Licensing Sub-Committees and officers in order to provide a speedy, efficient and
cost effective service to all parties involved in the licensing process.

Many of the decisions and functions are largely administrative in nature such as the
grant of non-contentious applications, including for example those licences and
certificates where no representations have been made, These will be delegated to
Council officers. All such matters dealt with by officers will be reported for
information to the next Licensing Commitiee meeting.

Applications where there are relevant representations will be dealt with by the
Licensing Committee/Sub-Commitiee — unless such representations are considered
irrelevant, frivolous or vexatious or uniess the Licensing Authority, the applicant and
everyone who has made representations agrees that a hearing is not necessary

(usually after successful mediation).

The table given below sets oul the delegation of decisions and functions of the
Licensing Commities, Sub-Commiltees and officers. The varous delegations
include delegation to impose appropriate conditions.

This scheme of delegations is without prejudice to the right of relevant parties to
refer an application to a Licensing Sub-Committee or the full Licensing Committee if
considered appropriate in the circumstances of any particular case.

7 January 2016 25

Page 72



i4.6

14.7

14.8

14.9

Unless there are compelling reasons to the contrary, the Licensing Authorily will
require the Licensing Commitiee or any of its sub-commitlees 1o meet in public —
although Members can refire into private session to consider their decision. A public
announcement of the decision will be made at the end of the hearing together with
clear, cogent reasons for the decision having due regard to the Human Rights Act
1998, the four licensing objectives and all other legislation.

The Licensing Committee will be made up of 15 members and Sub-Committees of
three who will hear any relevant representations from authorised persons,

responsible authorities and interested parties in the form of a hearing.

Where & function is delegated to an officer, that officer will be responsible for liaising
between the applicant, interested parlies and the responsible authorities to ensure
that any licence granted is subject to the appropriate conditions. Where objections
are made then the officer will once again liaise with the applicant, interested parties
and the responsible authorities to see if a 'settlement' is possible to overcome the
objections without the need for the matter to go before the Sub-Commitiee.

The Sub-Committee will determine each case before it on its individual merits.
However, in determining the application the Sub-Committee will consider:

The case and gvidence presenied by all parties

The promotion of the four licensing objectives
Guidance issued by Central Government
The Licensing Authority's own statement of Licensing Policy

- 5 o9

14.10 Delegation of functions:

Matter to be Fuli Sub-Committee Officers
dealt with Committee

Consideration of | Six monthly
reports to the
committee
Approval of new | Six monthly
/ updated Local
Licensing
Guidance B
Application for if representation is made | If no representation
personal licence | made
Application for All cases
Personal
Licence with
unspent

convictions
Application for If a relevant if no relevant

Premises representation made representation is

Licence / Club made
Premises

Ceitificate -
Application for a if a relevant if no relevant

Provisional representation made represeniation is

7 January 2016 26

Page 73




This page is intentionally left blank



fw e OV S

| Home Office

Revised Guidance issued
under section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003

April 2017

Page 75



1.

Introduction

The Licensing Act 2003

1.1

The Licensing Act 2003 (referred to in this Guidance as the 2003 Act), its explanatory
notes and any statutory instruments made under it may be viewed online at
www.legislation.gov.uk. The statutory instruments include regulations setting out the
content and format of application forms and notices. The Home Office has responsibility
for the 2003 Act. However, the Department for Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) is
responsible for regulated entertainment, for which there is provision in Schedule 1 to the
2003 Act (see Chapter 16).

Licensing objectives and aims

1.2

1.3

The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives which
must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.

The licensing objectives are:

+ The prevention of crime and disorder;

+..Public safety;

1.4

1.5

+ The prevention of public nuisance; and
+ The protection of children from harm.

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing objectives,
so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration at all times.

However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes.
These are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in
licensing work.

They include:

* protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and noise
nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises;

* giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively manage
and police the night-time economy and take action against those premises that are
causing problems;

* recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our
local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises;

* providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about
the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and

* encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving local
residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that may
affect them.

Revisedlguidanc issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 11
age 76

b o ' h ol



The guidance

1.6 Section 182 of the 2003 Act provides that the Secretary of State must issue and, from
time to time, may revise guidance to licensing authorities on the discharge of their
functions under the 2003 Act. This revised guidance takes effect as soon as it is
published. Where a licence application was made prior to the publication of the revised
guidance, it should be processed in accordance with the guidance in effect at the time at
which the application was made; the revised guidance does not apply retrospectively.
However, all applications received by the licensing authority on or after the date the
revised guidance was published should be processed in accordance with the revised
guidance.

Purpose

1.7 This Guidance is provided to licensing authorities in relation to the carrying out of their
functions under the 2003 Act. It also provides information to magistrates’ courts hearing
appeals against licensing decisions and has been made widely available for the benefit
of those who run licensed premises, their legal advisers and the general public. Itis a
key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent application of licensing
powers across England and Wales and for promeoting fairness, equal treatment and

proportionality:

1.8 The police remain key enforcers of licensing law. This Guidance does not bind police
officers who, within the parameters of their force orders and the law, remain
operationally independent. However, this Guidance is provided to support and assist
police officers in interpreting and implementing the 2003 Act in the promotion of the four
licensing objectives.

Legal status

1.9 Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a licensing authority
must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182. This
Guidance is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that extent. However, this
Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that may
arise and, as long as licensing authorities have properly understood this Guidance, they
may depart from it if they have good reason to do so and can provide full reasons.
Departure from this Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the
reasons given will then be a key consideration for the courts when considering the
lawfulness and merits of any decision taken.

1.10  Nothing in this Guidance should be taken as indicating that any requirement of licensing
law or any other law may be overridden (including the obligations placed on any public
authorities under human rights {egislation). This Guidance does not in any way replace
the statutory provisions of the 2003 Act or add to its scope and licensing authorities
should note that interpretation of the 2003 Act is a matter for the courts. Licensing
authorities and others using this Guidance must take their own professional and legal
advice about its implementation.

2 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of thepiﬁgs'é]gﬁ 2003

b ) h



Licensing policies

1.11

1.12

Section 5 of the 2003 Act requires a licensing authority to determine and publish a
statement of its licensing policy at least once every five years. The policy must be
published before it carries out any licensing functions under the 2003 Act.

However, determining and publishing a statement of its policy is a licensing function and
as such the authority must have regard to this Guidance when faking this step. A
licensing authority may depart from its own policy if the individual circumstances of any
case merit such a decision in the interests of the promotion of the licensing objectives.
But once again, it is important that it should be able to give fuil reasons for depaiting
from its published statement of licensing policy. Where revisions to this Guidance are
issued by the Secretary of State, there may be a period of time when the licensing
policy statement is inconsistent with the Guidance (for example, during any consultation
by the licensing authority). In these circumstances, the licensing authority should have
regard, and give appropriate weight, to this Guidance and its own existing licensing
policy statement.

Licensable activities

1.13

For the purposes of the 2003 Act, the foliowing are licensable activities:

+ The sale by retail of alcohol;

» The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the
club;

» The provision of regulated entertainment; and

+ The provision of late night refreshment.

Further explanation of these terms is provided in Chapter 3.

Authorisations or permissions

1.14

The 2003 Act provides for four different types of authorisation or permission, as follows:

+ Premises licence — to use premises for licensable activities.

+ Club premises certificate — to allow a qualifying club to engage in qualifying club
activities as set out in Section 1 of the Act.

» Temporary event notice — to carry out licensable activities at a temporary event.

» Personal licence ~ to sell or authorise the sale of alcohol from premises in respect of
which there is a premises licence.

General principles

1.15

If an application for a premises licence or club premises certificate has been made
lawfully and there have been no representations from responsible authorities or other
persons, the licensing authority must grant the application, subject only to conditions
that are consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory conditions. It is
recommended that licence applicants contact responsible authorities when preparing
their operating schedules.

Revisedlgg‘nﬁécefgued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 3

h .-



Licence conditions — general principles

1.16

Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are important in setting the
parameters within which premises can lawfully operate. The use of wording such as
‘must’, “shall” and “will” is encouraged. Licence conditions:

* must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing cbjectives;

+ must be precise and enforceable;
must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve;
should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or responsibilities
placed on the employer by other legislation;

* must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the premises
and events concerned;

+ should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be demonstrated
that they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in an individual
case;

+ should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other legislation;

+ should be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met;

*+ cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond the direct

management of the licence holder and their staff, but may impact on the behaviour of
customers in the immediate vicinity of the premises or as they enter or leave; and

+ should be written in a prescriptive format.

Each application on its own merits

1.17

Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the
licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application falls
within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and
certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no need
for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may be
unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives in an individual case.

Additional guidance

1.18

From time to time, the Home Office may issue additional supporting guidance to
licensing authorities and other persons on the Gov.uk website. This supporting guidance
is good practice guidance and should be viewed as indicative and subject to change.
Such supporting guidance will broadly reflect but will not be part of the statutory
guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of the 2003 Act. Licensing
authorities may wish to refer to, but are under no statutory duty to have regard to such
supporting guidance issued by the Home Office.

4 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of thep%@g?gt 2003

L bz



Other relevant legislation

1.19  While licence conditions should not duplicate other statutory provisions, licensing
authorities and licensees should be mindful of requirements and responsibilities placed
on them by other legislation. Legislation which may be relevant includes:

* The Gambling Act 2005

« The Environmental Protection Act 1980

+ The Noise Act 1996

+ The Clean Neighbourhoods and Environmental Act 2005
+ The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005

+ The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974

+ The Equality Act 2010

+ The Immigration Act 2016

Revisedpa@@%ed under section 182 of the Licensing Act 20031 5



2.

The licensing objectives

Crime and disorder

2.1

2.2

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime
and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety Partnership
(CSP).

In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with the
Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding relevant
conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important role in
preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly licensed
and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies are not
being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may include
making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led operations in
conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner agencies. Similarly, the
provision of requirements for door supervision may be appropriate to ensure that people
who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying firearms do not enter the premises and
ensuring that the police are kept informed.

2.3

2.4

2.5

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder
including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (see paragraph 10.10).
For example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and
crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises for
the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers,
But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure
that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are
properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition.

The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an
appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and town
centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems allow
managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a
rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on
the premises.

Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises supervisors
should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be the
responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing
authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and
appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will
usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the premises
licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind may only be
justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the
circumstances associated with particular premises, poor management competency
could give rise fo issues of crime and disorder and public safety.

6 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of thepiﬁg@@lt 2003

- -



2.6

The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work with
Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these
matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal
working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder fo
undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or
requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check are
retained at the licensed premises.

Public safety

2.7

2.8

2.9

~the-purpese-of- the-condition-as-this would-be-outside-the- licensing-authority’s-powers

Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their premises,
as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of people using the
relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in other legislation.
Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and other immediate
harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as unconsciousness or alcohol
poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also promote the crime and disorder
objective as noted above. There will of course be occasions when a public safety
condition could incidentally benefit a person's health more generally, but it should not be

(be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act. Conditions should not be imposed on a premises
licence or club premises certificate which relate to cleanliness or hygiene.

A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may
include:

+ Fire safety;

+ Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances;
Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example
communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts (see
paragraph 2.4 above);

- Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid
kits;

+ Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for exampie, through the
provision of information on late-night transportation);

« Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles;

+ Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises (see
paragraphs 2.12-2.13, and Chapter 10; and

+ Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises (as noted in paragraph 2.3
above, this may also assist with promoting the crime and disorder objective).

The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between premises
and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in Chapter 8 (8.38-
8.46), applicants should consider when making their application which steps it is
appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and demonstrate how they
achieve that.

Revisedl@ag@:e&@ued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 7



Ensuring safe departure of those using the premises

2.10  Licence holders should make provision to ensure that premises users safely leave their
premises. Measures that may assist include:

« Providing information on the premises of local taxi companies who can provide safe
transportation home; and
Ensuring adequate lighting outside the premises, particularly on paths leading to and
from the premises and in car parks.

Maintenance and repair

2.11  Where there is a requirement in other legislation for premises open to the public or for
employers to possess certificates attesting to the safety or satisfactory nature of certain
equipment or fixtures on the premises, it would be inappropriate for a licensing condition
to require possession of such a certificate. However, it would be permissible to require
as a condition of a licence or certificate, if appropriate, checks on this equipment to be
conducted at specified intervals and for evidence of these checks to be retained by the
premises licence holder or club provided this does not duplicate or gold-plate a
requirement in other legislation. Similarly, it would be permissible for licensing
authorities, if they receive relevant representations from responsible authorities or any

other persons, to attach conditions which require equipment of particular standards to
be maintained on the premises. Responsible authorities — such as health and safety
authorities ~ should therefore make their expectations clear in this respect to enable
prospective licence holders or clubs to prepare effective operating schedutes and club
operating schedules.

Safe capacities

212  "Safe capacities” should only be imposed where appropriate for the promotion of public
safety or the prevention of disorder on the relevant premises. For example, if a capacity
has been imposed through other legislation, it would be inappropriate to reproduce it in
a premises licence. Indeed, it would also be wrong to lay down conditions which conflict
with other legal requirements. However, if no safe capacity has been imposed through
other legislation, a responsible authority may consider it appropriate for a new capacity
to be attached to the premises which would apply at any material time when the
licensable activities are taking place and make representations to that effect. For
example, in certain circumstances, capacity limits may be appropriate in preventing
disorder, as overcrowded venues can increase the risks of crowds becoming frustrated
and hostile.

213  The permitted capacity is a limit on the number of persons who may be on the premises
at any time, following a recommendation by the relevant fire and rescue authority under
the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. For any application for a premises
licence or club premises certificate for premises without an existing permitted capacity
where the applicant wishes to take advantage of the special provisions set out in section
177 of the 2003 Act’, the applicant should conduct their own risk assessment as to the
appropriate capacity of the premises. They should send their recommendation to the fire
and rescue authority which will consider it and decide what the “permitted capacity” of

Y8 177 of the 2003 Act now only applies to performances of dance.
8 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of thel;biéeg%w%‘gt 2003

bl b b



2.14

those premises should be.

Public safety may inciude the safety of performers appearing at any premises, but does
not extend to the prevention of injury from participation in a boxing or wrestling
entertainment.

Public nuisance

2.15

2.16

The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through
representations, to consider what constifutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to
prevent it in terms of conditions attached o specific premises licences and club
premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this
licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect
of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working
(including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light
pollution, noxious smells and litter.

Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. it is however
not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. it may
include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and

2.17

2.18

2.19

environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises.
Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust,
odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.

Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control
the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple
measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular
time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time.
More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker
mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However,
conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances
where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable {see chapter 16). Any conditions
appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type,
nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing
authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter
events that are valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for
example, are expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable
burden for smaller venues.

As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain
circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the
area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their
powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other
legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and
additional conditions may be appropriate.

Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions
should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive
period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the

Reviseﬁéi@aécgﬁued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 200319

b h



2.20

2.21

earty morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or
are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music
between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise
emanating from the premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance
anticipated as customers enter and leave.

Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting
outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may
itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities
and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-
social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from
the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they
wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to
respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

—Protection-of children-from-harm

2.22

2.23

2.24

The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral,
psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the
harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as
exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of
exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also
consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking
licensing functions.

The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to children.
Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which are
appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover,
conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly considered
in circumstances where:

+ adult entertainment is provided,;

* amember or members of the current management have been convicted for serving
alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking {(other than in the
context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds consuming
beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal);

* itis known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;

+ there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or

* in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol
for consumption on the premises.

It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at certain
times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate as a café
bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide entertainment with a
sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an exhaustive list of what amounts
to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature. Applicants, responsible

10 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of tflgac@@irggct 2003

» e



2.25

2.26

2.27

authorities and licensing authorities will need to consider this point carefully. This would
broadly include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances
involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism,
or entertainment involving strong and offensive language.

Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times at
which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for
children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of
premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure
that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not
displayed at a time when children are likely {o be near the premises.

lLicensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when
preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be
taken to protect children from harm when on the premises.

Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking
place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age verification,
other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can include:

2.28

2.29

« restrictions on the hours when children may be present;

+ restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when
particular specified activities are taking place;

* restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;

» age restrictions (below 18);

+ restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;

» requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be
accompanied by an adult); and

- full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are
taking place.

Piease see also Chapter 10 for details about the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory
Licensing Conditions) Order 2010.

Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations about child
protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose functions relate
directly to child protection, the Director of Public Health may also have access to
relevant evidence to inform such representations. These representations may include,
amongst other things, the use of health data about the harms that alcohol ¢can cause to
underage drinkers. Where a responsible authority, or other person, presents evidence to
the licensing authority linking specific premises with harms to children {such as
ambulance data or emergency department attendances by persons under 18 years old
with alcohol- related ilinesses or injuries) this evidence should be considered, and the
licensing authority should also consider what action is appropriate to ensure this
licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to applications for the grant of a

- licence in areas where evidence is presented on high levels of alcohol-related harms in

persons aged under 18, it is recommended that the licensing authority considers what
conditions may be appropriate to ensure that this objective is promoted effectively.

. i . ) ; . ,
Revised @Jgg@e 861ed under section 182 of the Licensing Act 20031 11

b b



2.30

2.31

The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence or club premises certificate
authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition requiring the admission of
children to films to be restricted in accordance with recommendations given either by a
body designated under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the
licence (the British Board of Fitm Classification is currently the only body which has
been so designated) or by the licensing authority itself. Further details are given in
Chapter 10.

Theatres may present a range of diverse activities and entertainment including, for
example, variety shows incorporating adult entertainment. It is appropriate in these
cases for a licensing authority to consider restricting the admission of children in such
circumstances. Entertainments may also be presented at theatres specifically for
children. It will be appropriate to consider whether a condition should be attached to a
premises licence or club premises certificate which requires the presence of a sufficient
number of adult staff on the premises to ensure the welibeing of the children during any
emergency.

Offences relating to the sale and supply of alcohol to children

2.32

Licensing authorities are expected to maintain close contact with the police, young
offenders’ teams and trading standards officers (who can carry out test purchases under

section 154 of the 2003 Act) about the extent of unlawful sales and consumption of
alcohol by minors and to be involved in the development of any strategies to control or
prevent these unlawful activities and to pursue prosecutions. Licensing authorities,
alongside the police, are prosecuting authorities for the purposes of these offences,
except for the offences under section 147A (persistently selling alcohol to children).
Where, as a matter of policy, warnings are given to retailers prior to any decision to
prosecute in respect of an offence, it is important that each of the enforcement arms
should be aware of the warnings each of them has given.

12 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of ﬂig Hﬁésigrf\ct 2003

>

- R



8.70

may be no need for door supervision if a bar has been converted into a restaurant.
Equally some embedded conditions may no longer apply.

Changes in legislation may invalidate certain conditions. Although the conditions do not
have to be removed from the licence, licence holders and licensing authorities may
agree that this is desirable to clarify the licence holder's legal obligations. There may
also be cases where it is appropriate to revise the wording of a condition that is unclear
or unenforceable. This would be acceptable as a minor variation as long as the purpose
of the condition and its intended effect remain unchanged. Such a change could be
expected to promote the licensing objectives by making it easier for the licence holder to
understand and comply with the condition and easier for the licensing authority to
enforce it.

Full variations process

8.71

8.72

Any other changes to the licence or certificate require an application to vary under
sections 34 or 84 of the 2003 Act.

Licensing authorities may wish to consider whether there is any likely impact on the
promotion of the licensing objectives in deciding whether there is a need for an
application to vary in relation {o features which are not required to be shown on the plan

8.73

8.74

under section 17 of the 2003 Act, but have nevertheless been included, for example,
moveable furniture (altering the position of tables and chairs) or beer gardens
(installation of a smoking shelter that will not affect the use of exits or escape routes).

However, it should be noted that a section 34 application cannot be used to vary a
licence so as to:

+ extend a time limited licence;

+ transfer the licence from one holder to another; or

+ transfer the licence from one premises to another.

If an applicant wishes to make these types of changes to the premises licence, the

applicant should make a new premises licence application under section 17 of the 2003
Act; or, to transfer the licence to another holder, an application under section 42 of the

2003 Act.

Relaxation of opening hours for local, national and international
occasions

8.75

8.76

it should normally be possible for applicants for premises licences and club premises
certificates to anticipate special occasions which occur regularly each year — such as
bank holidays and St. George's or St. Patrick’'s Day — and to include appropriate
opening hours in their operating schedules. Similarly, temporary event notices should be
sufficient to cover other events which take place at premises that do not have a
premises licence or club certificate.

However, exceptional events of local, national or international significance may arise
which could not have been anticipated when the application was first made. In these
circumstances, the Secretary of State may make a licensing hours order to allow
premises to open for specified, generally extended, hours on these special occasions.
This avoids the need for large numbers of applications fo vary premises licences and

Revised ﬁlga'l e 'gged under section 182 of the Licensing Act 20031 59

h bl



9.

Determining applications

General

9.1

When a licensing authority receives an application for a new premises licence or an
application to vary an existing premises licence, it must determine whether the
application has been made in accordance with section 17 of the 2003 Act, and in
accordance with regulations made under sections 17(3) to (6), 34, 42, 54 and 55 of the
2003 Act. It must similarly determine applications for the grant of club premises
certificates made in accordance with section 71 of the 2003 Act, and in accordance with
regulations made under sections 71(4) to (7), 84, 91 and 92 of the 2003 Act. This
means that the licensing authority must consider among other things whether the
application has been properly advertised in accordance with those regulations.

Where no representations are made

9.2

A hearing is not required where an application has been properly made and no
responsible authority or other person has made a relevant representation or where
representations are made and subsequently withdrawn. in these cases, the licensing

authority must grant the application in the terms sought, subject only to conditions which
are consistent with the operating schedule and relevant mandatory conditions under the
2003 Act. This should be undertaken as a simple administrative process by the licensing
authority’s officials who should replicate the proposals contained in the operating
schedule to promote the licensing objectives in the form of clear and enforceable licence
conditions. Licensing authorities should not hold hearings for uncontested applications,
for example in situations where representations have been made and conditions have
subsequently been agreed.

Where representations are made

9.3

Where a representation concerning the licensing objectives is made by a responsible
authority about a proposed operating schedule and it is relevant {see paragraphs 9.4 to
9.10 below), the licensing authority’s discretion will be engaged. It will also be engaged
if another person makes relevant representations to the licensing authority, which are
also not frivolous or vexatious (see paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10 below). Relevant
representations can be made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can
be made by any individual, body or business that has grounds to do so.

Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations

9.4

A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the licence on
the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For example, a representation
from a local businessperson about the commercial damage caused by competition from
new licensed premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a
businessperson that nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from
entering the local area, and the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that
nuisance were inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, representations should
relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on from premises on the objectives.
For representations in relation to variations to be relevant, they should be confined to

66 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of tf@ age;izggct 2003



9.5

9.6

9.7

the subject matter of the variation. There is no requirement for a responsible authority or
other person to produce a recorded history of problems at premises to support their
representations, and in fact this would not be possible for new premises.

It is for the licensing authority to determine whether a representation (other than a
representation from responsible authority) is frivolous or vexatious on the basis of what
might ordinarily be considered to be vexatious or frivolous. A representation may be
considered to be vexatious if it appears to be intended to cause aggravation or
annoyance, whether to a competitor or other person, without reasonable cause or
justification. Vexatious circumstances may arise because of disputes between rival
businesses and local knowledge will therefore be invaluable in considering such
matters. Licensing authorities can consider the main effect of the representation, and
whether any inconvenience or expense caused by it could reasonably be considered to
be proportionate.

Frivolous representations would be essentially categorised by a lack of seriousness.
Frivolous representations would concern issues which, at most, are minor and in
relation to which no remedial steps would be warranted or proportionate.

Any person who is aggrieved by a rejection of their representations on either of these
grounds may lodge a complaint through the local authority's corporate complaints

9.8

9.9

9.10

procedure. A personh may also challenge the authority's decision by way of judicial
review.

Licensing authorities should not take decisions about whether representations are
frivolous, vexatious or relevant to the licensing objectives on the basis of any political
judgement. This may be difficult for councillors who receive complaints from residents
within their own wards. If consideration is not to be delegated, contrary to the
recommendation in this Guidance, an assessment should be prepared by officials for
consideration by the sub- commitiee before any decision is taken that necessitates a
hearing. Any councillor who considers that their own interests are such that they are
unable to consider the matter independently should disqualify themselves.

it is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any aspect of
a representation should be given {o the person making that representation. The
subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for the person or body making
the representation to amplify and clarify it.

Licensing authorities should consider providing advice on their websites about how any
person can make representations to them,

The role of responsible authorities

9.11

Responsible authorities under the 2003 Act are automatically notified of all new
applications. While all responsible authorities may make representations regarding
applications for licences and club premises certificates and full variation applications, it
is the responsibility of each responsible authority to determine when they have
appropriate grounds to do so.

Revised &gaﬂ e 'gikjed under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 67

b h



Representations from the police

9.12

In their role as a responsible authority, the police are an essential source of advice and
information on the impact and potential impact of licensable activities, particularly on the
crime and disorder objective. The police have a key role in managing the night-time
economy and should have good working relationships with those operating in their local
area”. The police should be the licensing authority’s main source of advice on matters
relating to the promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective, but may also be
able to make relevant representations with regard to the other licensing objectives if
they have evidence to support such representations. The licensing authority should
accept all reasonable and proportionate representations made by the police unless the
authority has evidence that to do so would not be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. However, it remains incumbent on the police {o ensure that their
representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they would be subject at a hearing.

Licensing authorities acting as responsible authorities

9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

Licensing authorities are included in the list of responsible authorities. A similar
framework exists in the Gambling Act 2005. The 2003 Act does not require responsible
authorities to make representations about applications for the grant of premises licences

--Qr-{0-take-any-other-steps-in-respect-of-different-licensing-processes.-It-is therefore - for-— e

the licensing authority to determine when it considers it appropriate to act in its capacity
as a responsible authority; the licensing authority should make this decision in
accordance with its duties under section 4 of the 2003 Act.

l.icensing authorities are not expected to act as responsible authorities on behalf of
other parties (for example, local residents, local councillors or community groups)
although there are occasions where the authority may decide to do so. Such parties can
make relevant representations to the licensing authority in their own right, and it is
reasonable for the licensing authority to expect them to make representations
themselves where they are reasonably able to do so. However, if these parties have
failed to take action and the licensing authority is aware of relevant grounds to make a
representation, it may choose to act in its capacity as responsible authority.

It is also reasonable for licensing authorities to expect that other responsible authorities
should intervene where the basis for the intervention falls within the remit of that other
responsible authority. For example, the police should make representations where the
representations are based on concerns about crime and disorder. Likewise, it is
reasonable to expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions to
make representations where there are concerns about noise nuisance. Each
responsible authority has equal standing under the 2003 Act and may act independently
without waiting for representations from any other responsible authority.

The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities to act as responsible authorities as a means
of early intervention; they may do so where they consider it appropriate without having
to wait for representations from other responsible authorities. For example, the licensing

® Elections for Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs)in all police force areas in England and Wales {except in London,
where tha Mayor of London has taken on the powers of a PCC in relation to the Metropolitan Police) took place on 15th
November 2012. PCCs are expected to have a central role working in parinership with local authorities, enforcement bodies and
other local partners to decide on what action is needed to tackie afcohol- related crime and disorder in their areas. However, the
Chief Cfficer of Police will remain the named responsible authority under the 2003 Act.

68 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of tBéiéeésibqfct 2003

- ) h ol



9.17

9.18

authority may (in a case where it has applied a cumulative impact policy) consider that
granting a new licence application will add to the cumulative impact of licensed
premises in its area and therefore decide to make representations to that effect, without
waiting for any other person to do so.

In cases where a licensing authority is also acting as responsible authority in relation to
the same process, it is important to achieve a separation of responsibilities within the
authority to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest. In such cases
licensing determinations will be made by the licensing committee or sub committee
comprising elected members of the authority (although they are advised by a licensing
officer). Therefore, a separation is achieved by allocating distinct functions (i.e. those of
licensing authority and responsible authority) to different officials within the authority.

In these cases, licensing authorities should allocate the different responsibilities to
different licensing officers or other officers within the local authority to ensure a proper
separation of responsibilities. The officer advising the licensing committee (i.e. the
authority acting in its capacity as the licensing authority) must be a different person from
the officer who is acting for the responsible authority. The officer acting for the
responsible authority should not be involved in the licensing decision process and
should not discuss the merits of the case with those involved in making the

9.19

determination by the licensing authority. For example, discussion should not take place
between the officer acting as responsible authority and the officer handling the licence
application regarding the merits of the case. Communication between these officers in
relation to the case should remain professional and consistent with communication with
other responsible authorities. Representations, subject to limited exceptions, must be
made in writing. it is for the licensing authority to determine how the separate roles are
divided to ensure an appropriate separation of responsibilities. This approach may not
be appropriate for all licensing authorities and many authorities may already have
processes in place to effectively achieve the same outcome.

Smaller licensing authorities, where such a separation of responsibilities is more
difficult, may wish to involve officials from outside the licensing department to ensure a
separation of responsibilities. However, these officials should still be officials employed
by the authority.

Health bodies acting as responsible authorities

9.20

9.21

Where a local authority’s Director of Public Health in England (DPH)® or Local Health
Board (LHB) (in Wales) exercises its functions as a responsible authority, it should have
sufficient knowledge of the licensing policy and health issues to ensure it is able to fulfil
those functions. If the authority wishes to make representations, the DPH or LHB will
need to decide how best to gather and coordinate evidence from other bodies which
exercise health functions in the area, such as emergency departments and ambulance
services.

Health bodies may hold information which other responsible authorities do not, but
which would assist a licensing authority in exercising its functions. This information may

® This change was made as a result of the commencement of measures in the Health and Social Care Act 2012 which amended
the 2003 Act and further provision in the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities (Partnership Arrangements, Care Trusts, Public
Health and Local Healthwatch) Regulations 2012.

Revised @a@éa gszed under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 69

- h



be used by the health body to make representations in its own right or to support
representations by other responsible authorities, such as the police Such
representations can potentially be made on the grounds of all four licensing objectives.
Perhaps the most obvious example is where drunkenness leads to accidents and
injuries from violence, resulting in attendances at emergency departments and the use
of ambulance services. Some of these incidents will be reported to the police, but many
will not. Such information will often be relevant to the public safety and crime and
disorder objectives.

9.22 However, health bodies are encouraged to make representations in respect of any of
the four licensing objectives without necessarily seeking views from other responsible
authorities where they have appropriate evidence to do so. There is also potential for
health bodies to participate in the licensing process in relation to the protection of
children from harm. This objective not only concerns the physical safety of children, but
also their moral and psychological well being.

9.23  Evidence relating to under 18s alcohol-related emergency department attendance,
hospital admissions and underage sales of alcohol, could potentially have implications
for both the protection of children from harm and the crime and disorder objectives.
Health bodies can provide evidence to lead or support representations in relation to this

objective. In relation to proxy purchases, data collected by health bodies could be used
to inform other responsible authorities, including the police and licensing authorities,
about a prevalence of proxy purchasing in a particular area. For example, the police
could use this data to tackle instances of ‘shoulder tapping’ (where under 18s approach
adults to buy alcohol on their behalf) and to suggest measures which retailers might be
able to take to ensure, as far as possible, that they are not knowingly selling alcoho! to
an adult who is buying on behalf of a person aged under 18. Although less obvious,
health bodies may also have a role to play in the prevention of public nuisance where its
effect is prejudicial to health and where they hold relevant data.

9.24 DPHs and LHBs will need to consider how to collect anonymised information about
incidents that relate to specific premises or premises in a particular area (for example, a
cumulative impact zone). Many areas have already developed procedures for local
information sharing to tackle violence, which could provide useful evidence to support
representations. The College of Emergency Medicine has issued guidelines for
information sharing to reduce community violence which recommends that data about
assault victims should be collected upon admission to emergency departments,
including the date, time and location of the assault — i.e. the name of the pub, club or
street where the incident occurred. Sometimes, it may be possible to link ambulance
callouts or attendances at emergency departments to irresponsible practices at specific
premises, such as serving alcohol to people who are intoxicated or targeting promotions
involving unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol at particular groups.

70 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of tpéigeésig@ct 2003

- : - ' L



Home Office Immigration Enforcement acting as a responsible
authority

9.25  The Immigration Act 2016 made the Secretary of State a responsible authority in
respect of premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment with effect from 6
April 2017. In effect this conveys the role of responsible authority to Home Office
Immigration Enforcement who exercises the powers on the Secretary of State's behalf.
When Immigration Enforcement exercises its powers as a responsible authority it will do
s0 in respect of the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective because it is
concerned with the prevention of illegal working or immigration offences more broadly.

Disclosure of personal details of persons making representations

9.26  Where a notice of a hearing is given to an applicant, the licensing authority is required
under the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 to provide the applicant with
copies of the relevant representations that have been made.

9.27  In exceptional circumstances, persons making representations to the licensing authority
may be reluctant to do so because of fears of intimidation or violence if their personal
details, such as name and address, are divulged to the applicant.

—8:28-—Where-licensing-authorities consider-that the person-has-a-genuine-and-wet=founded-———---

fear of intimidation and may be deterred from making a representation on this basis,
they may wish to consider alternative approaches.

9.29  For instance, they could advise the persons to provide the relevant responsible authority
with details of how they consider that the licensing objectives are being undermined so
that the responsible authority can make representations if appropriate and justified.

9.30  The licensing authority may also decide to withhold some or all of the person's personal
details from the applicant, giving only minimal details (such as street name or general
location within a street). However, withholding such details should only be considered
where the circumstances justify such action.

Hearings

9.31  Regulations governing hearings may be found on the www.legislation.qgov.uk website. If
the licensing authority decides that representations are relevant, it must hold a hearing
to consider them. The need for a hearing can only be avoided with the agreement of the
licensing authority, the applicant and all of the persons who made relevant
representations. In cases where only 'positive’ representations are received, without
qualifications, the licensing authority should consider whether a hearing is required. To
this end, it may wish to notify the persons who made representations and give them the
opportunity to withdraw those representations. This would need to be done in sufficient
time before the hearing to ensure that parties were not put to unnecessary
inconvenience.

9.32  Responsible authorities should try to conclude any discussions with the applicant in
good time before the hearing. If the application is amended at the last moment, the
licensing committee should consider giving other persons time to address the revised
application before the hearing commences.

9.33  Regulations made under the 2003 Act require that representations must be withdrawn

Revised @a@& 9548d under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 71

b o b



9.34

9.35

24 hours before the first day of any hearing. If they are withdrawn after this time, the
hearing must proceed and the representations may be withdrawn orally at that hearing.
However, where discussions between an applicant and those making representations
are taking place and it is likely that all parties are on the point of reaching agreement,
the licensing authority may wish to use the power given within the hearings regulations
to extend time limits, if it considers this to be in the public interest.

Applicants should be encouraged to contact responsible authorities before formulating
their applications so that the mediation process may begin before the statutory time
limits come into effect after submission of an application. The hearing process must
meet the requirements of regulations made under the 2003 Act. Where matters arise
which are not covered by the regulations, iicensing authorities may make arrangements
as they see fit as long as they are lawful.

There is no requirement in the 2003 Act for responsible authorities that have made
representations to attend, but it is generally good practice and assists committees in
reaching more informed decisions. Where several responsible authorities within a local
authority have made representations on an application, a single local authority officer
may represent them at the hearing if the responsible authorities and the licensing
authority agree. This local authority officer representing other responsible authorities
may be a licensing officer, but only if this licensing officer is acting as a responsible

9.36

9.37

9.38

9.39

authority on behalf of the licensing authority and has had no role in the licensing
determination process. This is to ensure that the responsible authorities are represented
by an independent officer separate from the licensing determination process.

As noted in paragraphs 9.13 to 9.19 above, where the licensing officer is acting as a
responsible authority the relevant steps should be followed to ensure that this individual
has no role in the decision making process regarding the licensing determination.

As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the
steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives
that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed
areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written
representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the
applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation.

In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the
overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate
weight to:

+ the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;

+ the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties:
+ this Guidance;

- its own statement of licensing policy.

The licensing authority should give its decision within five working days of the
conclusion of the hearing (or immediately in certain specified cases) and provide
reasons to support it. This will be important if there is an appeal by any of the parties.
Notification of a decision must be accompanied by information on the right of the party

to appeal. After considering all the relevant issues, the licensing authority may grant the
application subject to such conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule.

72 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Page 95



9.40

9.41

Any conditions imposed must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives; there is no power for the licensing authority to attach a condition that is
merely aspirational. For example, conditions may not be attached which relate solely to
the health of customers rather than their direct physical safety. Any conditions added to
the licence must be those imposed at the hearing or those agreed when a hearing has
not been necessary.

Alternatively, the licensing authority may refuse the application on the grounds that this
is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. It may also refuse to specify
a designated premises supervisor and/or only allow certain requested licensable
activities. In the interests of transparency, the licensing authority should publish
hearings procedures in full on its website to ensure that those involved have the most
current information.

In the context of variations or minor variations, which may involve structural aiteration to
or change of use of a building, the decision of the licensing authority will not exempt an
applicant from the need to apply for building control approval, planning permission or
both of these where appropriate.

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives

9.42

9.43

9.44

Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations should
be considered on a case-by-case basis. They should take into account any
representations or objections that have been received from responsible authorities or
other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises user as the case
may be.

The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to

achieve.

Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would be suitable to
achieve that end. While this does not therefore require a licensing authority to decide
that no lesser step will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the
potential burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence holder (such
as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable activities) as well as the
potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it is
imperative that the authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its
determination are limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing
outside those parameters. As with the consideration of licence variations, the licensing
authority should consider wider issues such as other conditions already in place to
mitigate potential negative impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and the
track record of the business. Further advice on determining what is appropriate when
imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is provided in Chapter 10. The licensing
authority is expected fo come to its determination based on an assessment of the
evidence on both the risks and benefits either for or against making the determination.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 73

Page 96



Not Set

0 00125 0.025 0.05
Scale: pw s

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controlier of He
Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012,

Unautherised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution
or ¢civil preceedings.

Organisation Gateshead Council
Department Development and Public Prote
Comments Not Set

Date 17/10/2017

MSA Number SLA S

Page 97




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Application for Variation to a Premises Licence
	Appendix 1 and Appendix 1.1
	Appendix 2 and 2.1
	Appendix 2.2
	Appendix 2.3
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5


